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30
PINCO 2020-10
2021 10
) )
GE Capital Funding LLC 3.450 | 2025/ /15 9,008,230 8,500,000 9,094,682 .49
General Motors Co. 6.125 | 2025/10/ 6,500,608 5,700,000 6,617,810 .81
Syngenta Finance NV 4.892 | 2025/ /24 6,407,652 6,000,000 6,501,173 .78
Las Vegas Sands Corp. 2.900 | 2025/ /25 6,414,425 6,400,000 6,496,809 .78
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 3.450 | 2025/ / 6,338,899 6,100,000 6,361,392 .74
Bank of Ireland Group PLC 4.500 | 2023/11/25 6,243,843 5,900,000 6,298,504 .73
UniCredit SpA 7.830 | 2023/12/ 6,148,998 5,500,000 6,242,511 .71
BPCE S.A. 4.500 | 2025/ /15 6,199,325 5,700,000 6,209,791 .70
Gray Oak Pipeline LLC 2.600 | 2025/10/15 5,412,475 5,400,000 5,514,696 .51
10 |Dell International LLC 5.850 | 2025/ /15 5,245,959 4,600,000 5,288,684 .45
11 |Credit Suisse Group AG 2.593 | 2025/ /11 5,291,373 5,100,000 5,245,992 .44
12 |Ally Financial, Inc. 4.625 | 2025/ /30 4,904,270 4,500,000 4,955,119 .36
13 |Ovintiv Exploration, Inc. 5.625 | 2024/ / 4,343,062 4,400,000 4,845,962 .33
14 |AIB Group PLC 4.263 | 2025/ /10 4,546,057 4,305,000 4,580,475 .25
15 |Energy Transfer LP 4.050 | 2025/ /15 4,369,942 4,200,000 4,503,543 .23
16 |Hyatt Hotels Corp. 5.375 | 2025/ /23 4,270,204 4,000,000 4,458,161 .22
17 |Radian Group, Inc. 6.625 | 2025/ /15 4,279,571 4,000,000 4,455,000 .22
18 |BGC Partners, Inc. 3.750 | 2024/10/ 4,253,271 4,200,000 4,433,099 .21
19 |Nissan Motor Co. Ltd. 3.522 | 2025/ /17 4,232,138 4,200,000 4,419,999 .21
20 |SMBC Aviation Capital Finance DAC 3.550 | 2024/ /15 4,251,550 4,100,000 4,311,370 .18
21 |Boeing Co. 4.875 | 2025/ / 4,181,057 3,900,000 4,309,891 .18
22 Intesa Sanpaolo SpA 5.017 | 2024/ /26 4,172,983 4,000,000 4,290,527 .18
23 |Societe Generale S.A. 4.250 | 2025/ /14 4,250,331 4,000,000 4,285,391 .17
24 |Glencore Funding LLC 1.625 | 2025/ / 4,290,925 4,300,000 4,275,146 .17
25 |VeriSign, Inc. 5.250 | 2025/ / 4,179,888 3,800,000 4,251,250 .16
26 |Standard Chartered PLC 3.785 | 2025/ /21 4,220,758 4,000,000 4,239,276 .16
27 |HSBC Holdings PLC 3.803 | 2025/ /11 4,235,383 4,000,000 4,235,876 .16
28 |Credit Agricole S.A. 4.375 | 2025/ /17 4,250,994 3,900,000 4,230,548 .16
29 |Athene Global Funding 2.500 | 2025/ /14 4,206,931 4,100,000 4,228,458 .16
30 |Owens Corning 4.200 | 2024/12/ 4,213,498 3,900,000 4,227,256 .16

2021 10
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2022 1

2021 10 364,985,104.69 42,133,880 102.93 11,882
2021 430,730,471.13 49,723,526 102.35 11,815
422,469,397.29 48,769,867 102.16 11,793

416,152,737.99 48,040,672 102.84 11,872

413,850,372.92 47,774,887 103.24 11,918

405,804,315.19 46,846,050 103.37 11,933

398,514,788.89 46,004,547 103.69 11,970

391,719,099.65 45,220,053 103.57 11,956

381,768,424.95 44,071,347 103.36 11,932

10 365,482,766.64 42,191,331 102.93 11,882

11 355,329,111.54 41,019,193 102.53 11,836

12 348,227,072.86 40,199,333 102.61 11,845

2022 335,655,162.38 38,748,032 101.39 11,704

2.93

2020 10 15 2021 10 31

100

100.00
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PINCO 2020-10
2021 10 31

PINCO 2020-10

362,567 41,855

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

TBA 0 0

0 0

3,918 452

0 0

366,485 42,307

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

TBA 0 0

0 0

0 0

1,075 124

0 0

127 15

0 0

0 0

32 4

60 7

206 24

1,500 173

364,985 42,134

356,424 41,146
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PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31
PIMCO 2020-10
10,629 1,227
0 0
10,629 1,227
0 0
1,728 199
0 0
2,809 324
432 50
60 7
0 0
0 0
5,029 581
5,600 646
817 94
0 0
48 6
0 0
865 100
6,143 709
0 0
0 0
0 0
6,143 709
7,008 809
12,608 1,455
0 0

2020 10 15 2021 10 31
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N
100.00 11,544
1.39 160
1.54 178
2.93 338
0.00 0
102.93 11,882
2.93
364,985 42,134
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1.16
1.30
0.01
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PINCO 2020-10 2020 10 15 (
) 2021 10 31 2020 10 31
2021 10 31 2020 10 31
2020 10 15 ( ) 2020 10 31 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 ( ) 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 2020 11 1 2020 10 15
2020 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
$ 32 3 5,568 $ 5,600
0 865 865
(1,511) 7,654 6,143
(1,479) 14,087 12,608
428,248 0 428,248
0 (75,871) (75,871)

$ 426,769 % (61,784) $ 364,985
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) 2021 10 31

2021 10 31

2020 10 30 ( ) 2020 10 31
2020 10 30 ( ) 2021 10 31

2020 10 30 2020 11 1 2020 10 30
2020 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31

$ 0o 3 837 $ 837

0 (6,722) (6,722)

0 (3,610) (3,610)

0 (9,495) (9,495)

0 0 0

24,690 177,059 201,749

0 (8,486) (8,486)

$ 24,690 §$ 159,078 $ 183,768
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2,358 9,940
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
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1,474 18,661

74 392
15 109
1 115
14 1,067
5 304
1 68
4 87
32 2,463
0 0
252 1,316
762 5,552
18 1,122
103 2,958
232 7,865
51 3,465
21 1,028
145 4,908
219 4,719
113 8,624

(12,558)| (161,262)

@1,031)|  (5,443)

2.531)| (18,453)

e (@,547)

@122)]  (9,505)

©5 @.110)

341)|  (9,659)

(559)]  (19,064)

9| 4,677y

94) (4,747)

(536)]  (18,213)

“10)[  (9,003)

(556)]  (42,510)

(11,084)| (142,601)] (2,457)| (64,993)|  (1.640)| (34.,577) @27 (11,199)
PINMCO
PINCO PINCO PINMCO
¢
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
422 7,643
163 35,229
5 920
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19) (994)
12) (612) 1,950 | 193,263 09)|  (7.,477) 10 804
PINCO PINICO PINCO
PINCO
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
3,310 | 534,744 522 | 112,071 | 3,274 | 696,225 | 124,453 | 1,911,365
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(1,002)| (161,890) 489)| (103,812)| (2,026)| (431,420) (156,604) (2,391,742)
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2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
2,244 | 241,412
1,814 | 152,308
37,500 | 338,344
135 [ 11,900
29 2,682
837®| 76,057
3,842 38,820
13,425 | 1,093,063
7,566 | 568,807
1,172 9,236
3,009 | 40,816
45 4,750
483 | 45,208
31| 36,271
1,804 | 189,765
1,140 | 13,332
6 648
30 2,459
16 1,467
12 669
605 | 50,791
9,006 | 81,639
8 758
932 7,734
175 | 14,204
164 | 14,748
246 | 14,832
(1,103)] (119,340)
B-J 1605 48)|  (452,963)
B-J 1605 a3)|  (126,888)
B-J 1609 @2 @,113,527)
B-J 1609 ®|  (71.873)
B-J 1612 @on)|  (953,800)
B-J 1612 as)|  (130,280)
2,437 (206,601)
(29,702)| (267,065)
1,372)| (123,354)
asy| 7,178
(79) (950)
@ 6@
46)®)| (2,501)®
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(6,967)| (584,139)

2.164)| (163,334)

@180  (9,345)

(4,404)| (45,763)

@y  (11,532)

(2,160)| (235,398)

@351)|  (36,253)

@,97)|  (52,753)

308)|  (3,563)

@® (810)

@.124)|  (92,785)

916)|  (82,628)

@3n|  (50,637)

@6nl  .521)

26,492 | 850,915 9|  (35,245) (303)| (2,849,421)| 1,141 | 122,072
PIM
co PIMCO PIMCO PINCO
2020 10
4 5
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
3,529 52,853 93 24,360
3 284
14 1,303

4,282 428,248

0 0 0 0
(10,850) (163,947) an|  (20,228)
(€Y) (116)
G| (@.757)
69| (6,612)
736)  (75,871)
@6n  ((7.898)  (7.321)| (111,094) 16 4,132 3,546 | 352,377
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PIMCO PINCO PIMCO PINCO
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
3 255 5 400 1,770 31,369
6 372
20 455
1 115
0 24
2 163
3 205
1 51
2 66
25 502
170 12,298 76 6,247 0 0
63 4,187
16 384
4 243
5 282
5 289
3 193
114 5,704
9 320
30 654
(700)|  (51,034) @87)| (23.638)|  (7.795) (138,668)
@| a4,676)
66)|  (1,580)
4 (901)
4 (841)
@13) (861)
(10) (721)
33 (16,619)
@9 (,012)
G| (1,140)
G27)|  (38,481) (206)]  (16,991)|  (6,025)| (107,299) @) (24,142)
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o 1HeO PINCO PINCO PINCO
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
1 65 31 6,026
3 167
1 104
3 397
2 194
532 5,759
0 0 0 0
2 164
3 184
2 184
e (2,892) Ih) (331)
(10) (725)
12) (874)
el e
(10) (810)
(10) (952)
(25) (278)
| (@412 476 2,249 @) @827 30 5,695
PINCO PINCO PINCO PINCO
2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
3 247 62| 16,288
0 4
0 1
6 300
10 489
42 693
0 0 0 0
84 712
03 4,604
1,443 | 17,136
51 4,633
79 3,990
2 84
48 821
65 (5,388) 66)|  (14,984)
)| (15,625)
)| 4,663)
30| (19,353)
,780)|  (33,436)
o) (17,566)
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@s67)|  (8,394)
(5) (249)
@43)]  (4,149)
o6y (5.141) 6 1,304 466)| (36,613)]  (1,780)| (33,355)
2021 10 31
1,096 9,141
0 0
(1,019)|  (8,39)
77 745
2020 10 30 2021 10 31
2021 10 31 99.99
10
2021 15 2021 10 31
2021 10 31 77.99
10
2020 10 15 2021 10 31
13
14
US GAAP
2021 10 31
2021 10 31
15
2022 25
PIMCO
J 1605 B-J 1605 2021 11 PIMCO
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2022 14
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PIMCO 2020-10

2021 10 31

i EY{E
{FILEE)

APT Pipalines Lud.

4.200% due 03,/23/2005 5 3500 5 430

‘Woodside Finance Lid.

36500 due 03,/05/2025 200 212

F—AFFUITEHEH 4418
(RIS s4,021)

|

Aircastho Lid
5.250% due 08/11/2025 2,200 2432
Bacardi Lud.

445005 due 05152005 1,750 1,366
IHS Markit Led,

A.75006 due 02,/15/2025 3,800 4,181
AT o= 7878

(B 57,727}

Cemevaz Enargy, Ine.
53755 due O7/15/2025 553 622

gosazy Led.

5.375% due 12/01/2024 300 308

bl gy ]
(B 524)

Park Asrospace Holdings Lid

5.500% due 02,/15/2024 2100 2276

Ssagatn HOD Cayman

475006 due 01,/01,/2025 3,000 3,244

XLIT Lud,

44500 due 03,/31/2025 3,800 4,168

A v B EE 8,688
(RIS 50.501)

Dmnske Bank AIS

5.375% due 00,/12/2004 3,800 4,140

For—r it 4,140
(R A ¢a,130)

BNP Paribas 5.4

4,705% ue 01/10/2025 3,900 4,155
BRCE S,

4.500% due 03,/15/2005 5,700 6,210
Cradfit Agricale 5.4,

A_375% due 03/17/2025 3,900 4,231
Sochetn Gemerale S.A.

43500 due 04,/14/2035 4,000 4285
F I AN 18,921

(RN 318,003)
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PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31
i R
(T
Dsutzche Bank AG
3.300% due 11,/16/2022 s 1,900 § 1351
A it 1,851
(LIRS 41,827)

4.263% due 04/10/2025 4,305 4,560

Bank of Iredand Group PLC

4.5000% due 11/25/2023 5,500 6,259

GMBC Aviation Capital Finance DAC

3.5500 due 04,15/2024 4,100 4,311

TART 2 FEN 17,352
(IR s17,108)

lzrasd Eleciric Coap. Lid.

5.000% due 111272024 3,200 4,184

£ 2F =il 4,184
(R U $4,100)

Intnsa Ganpaole ZpA

3.2500% due 09/23/2024 200 210

50175 due 06,/26,/2024 4,000 4,291

UniCredit SpA

E.5T2% due 00/14/2023 1,200 1,315

T-E30% due 12/04/2023 5,500 6,242

A # U Tt 12,058
(HCRIREE 411,844)

Nissan Mater Co. Ltd.

3.522% due 09/17/2025 4,200 4420

Nomura Holdings, Ine.

LBS1% dua 07/ 1652025 2,000 2,012

AAaH 5432
(EiS IS 46,765)

Broadzom Corp.

3.125% gue 01,/15/2025 #,000 4,203

& Emat 4203

(Bl sa,220)
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PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31
ki Bl
{ - higir ) {F-Igfir)
ABN AMRO Bask WV
4. 7500 due 07/28/2025 $ 2,800 5  41m
Cosgeratisve Rabobank UA
A_3755 due 08,/04,/2025 3,00 4,177
LeazePlan Corp. NV
28755 due 10//24/2024 3,000 1M
Synpesia Fisance NV
4.892% due 04,/24/2005 5,000 6,501
3 al 17,081
M
(B 0EE $17.918)
Aker BF ASA
3.000% due 01,/15/2025 2,500 2,609
e = —Ei 1508
(R 52.506)
BOC Awiation Ltd,
A.0000% due 01,/25/3024 2.200 2851
i - 2851
(R es 52,017}
&K Hymir, Inc.
1.000% due 01,/19/2004 00 199
mEEM 184
(iR IRE s200)
Cracst Sulsss Group AG
2.593% due 09/11/3025 5,100 5,246
2.997% due 12/14/2023 1,950 1,996
A.207% due 06/12/2024 50 262
UBS Group AG
11255 due 09)24/2025 3,800 4,154
Aq 2GR 11.658
(ERRIES 511,700)
FETEYED
i AL
Barclays Bank PLE
TBR55 due 11/21/2022 (a) 1415 1,508
HSAC Holdings PLC
38035 due 03,/11/2025 4,000 4336
2,250 due 08/18/2025 1,900 2,061
Imparinl Brands Finasca PLC
4.250% due 07/21/2025 3,500 4,219
Lioyds Banking Group PLC
44505 due 05,/08/2025 3,800 4,183
45000 due 11,/04/2004 1,500 2,068
Mationwida Bullding Socisty
OLE50% due 00,22/2024 400 396
MatWest Group PLC

4

4.369% due 03,/22/2025 3,900 4,1
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PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31
i 45 il
{T-Hhfir} (Fag)

Rells-Royes PLC
3.625% due 10,/14/2025 5 2400 5 2454
Santander UK Group Holdings PLC
LOBI due 03,15/2005 400 308
A4.750% due 09/15/2025 2,900 3,158
A.796% due 11/15/2024 2,000 2,149
Stenderd Chartersd PLC
3.785% due 05/21/0025 4,000 4,239
AN 24H 35,186

(RS IEE $35,005)
A U A Saan
AES Corp.
33000 due 07,/15/3025 2,000 2,105
Allagion U.5. Helding Ca., Inc.
3:200% due 10,/01,/2024 2,100 2211
Ally Finaneial, lse,
46255 due 03,/30,/2005 4,500 4,955
Ares Capital Corp.
4.200% due 06/10/2024 2,000 2,130
Athene Gilsbal Funding
2.50006 due 01,/14/2025 4,100 4,228
Avintion Cagital Group LLC
4.125% due 08/01/2025 1,631 1,743
BGE Partnere, Ine.
3.750% due 1001/ 0024 4,100 4433
Bosing Co.
48755 due 05,/01,/2005 3,500 4310
Chesiens Corpus Christi Holdings LLC
T000% due 06,/ 30/2024 3,700 4,144
Columbia Property Trust Dperating Partnership LP
A, 15006 due 04,/01/2025 2,485 2,667
DAE Funding LLC
1.625% due 02/15/2024 500 554
625% due 03,/20/2025 1,000 1,013
Dedl Intarnationsl LLC
5 85006 due 07,15,/20025 4,600 5,289
Dt Air Lines, Inc.
2.900% due 10/28/2024 1,200 1,226
Diamondbasck Emsrgy, lne.
47500 due 05/31/2025 3,000 3313
Edison International
3.550% due 11/15/2024 2,500 2,639
Enact Holdings, lec.
B.500% due 08/15/2025 3,000 2,15
Enargy Transfee LP
40505 due 03,1 52025 4, 00 4 504
EFR Froperties
4.500% due 04012025 1,300 1,382
Firet Amarican Financisl Carp.
4_600% due 11,15/ 3024 3,800 4 165
FirstEnergy Transmizsion LLC
43500 due 01,15/2025 3.800 4,113
Fortress Transpentation & Infrestructure bnvestors LLE
B.5000% due 10,/01/2025 &00 a4
GE Capital Funding LLC
34505 due ﬂﬁfl 53025 8,500 9,055
Ganeral Mators Co.
B.125% due 10,/01,/2005 5,700 6,618
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PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31

iy S 4]

{T-Midir} (Tl
Genssiz Enargy LP
B.500% due 10,/01/2025 5 1,700 5 1673
Glencom Funding LLC
16255 due 09,/01,/3005 4,300 a4275
GLP Capital LP
52500 due 06/01/2025 2,500 210
5.375% due 11/01/2023 175 leg
Gray Dak Pipaline LLC
26000 due 10,/15/2025 5,400 5,515
Hos1 Hotels: & Resorts LP
4.000% due 06/15/2025 3,100 3,248
Huntington Ingalls Indkestring, Inc.
3.844% due 05,/01/2005 1,165 1,253
Hyatt Hotals Corp.
5.375% due 04/23/2025 4,000 4,458
Hyundai Capital Asarica
OLBO0% due 0008/ 2024 1,100 1,080
Las Yegas Sands Corp,
290008 due 06,25/2025 6,400 6,497
Lemnar Corp.
5.875% due 11/15/2024 1,300 1,451
Maawiott |siarnational, Ine,
575008 due 05,/01,/2005 527 508
MGM Growth Propsrties Oparating Parinership LP
4.625% due 06/15/2025 2,100 2,260
Midwesi Connector Cagsial Co, LLE
35000 due 04,01/2004 1,925 2,006
Newmark Group, Inc.
B.125% due 11,/15/2023 2,000 2,163
NMI Holdings., Ine.
T.375% due 06/01/2025 2,000 2,300
Decidental Patroloum Corp.
BD00%E due 07,/15,/20025 2,100 2481
Dmegs Healtheare Investors, kne.
4.500% due 01/15/2025 3,100 3,355
Dvinthv Exploration, Inc.
5.625% due O7/01,/2024 4, 400 4,846
Diwons Corning
42000 due 12,/01,/2024 3,500 a4227
Pecilie Gas & Elwciric Co.
3 4505 due O7/01/2025 5,100 5,361
POC Energy, Inc.
6125596 due 09,/15/2024. 2,250 2,285
PRA Group, Ine.
7.375% due 09012025 2,000 2,135
Rudian Grewp, Inc.
EB25% due 03/15/2025 4,000 4,455
Sabre GLEL, Inc.
925006 due 04,15/2025 1,500 2,158
Sentander Holdings USA, Inc.
45000 due 071772025 S00 548
5L Green Realty Corp.
A4.50006 due 12,/01/2022 3,100 3,192
Southwes Alrlises Co.
52500 due 05,/04/2025 2,500 3,252
Spirit AereSystams, Inc,
5.50006 due 01/15/2005 2100 2189
F.500% due 04,/15/2025 1,200 1,268
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PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31

i $5 (13

{T-Hkfi} { Tl
Starwood Property Trust, Iec,
5.5000% due 11,/01/2023 5 2,000 5 2,103
Synchreay Fimancial
4.500% due 07 /2372025 1,000 1,054
TripAdvitor, Inc.
T.000% due O7,/15/2025 1,400 1,482
United Airlines 2012-1 Clasz A Pass-Through Trest
A4.150% due 04,/11,/2024 T4 137
Uniti Group LP
TH75% due 02/15/2025 1,400 1474
Uniwizion Commumnications, Inc,
5. 125% due 02/15/2025 2,200 2,236
Veridign, Inc.
5.250% due 040172025 3,800 4,251
Vigara Operations Co. LLC
35500 due O7,/15/2024 4,000 4,168
Viwiang, oz,
45000 due 05/15/2025 3,800 4,189
Vaolkswagan Group of America Finance LLE
3.3500% due 05/13/2025 2,500 2,650
WEA Finance LLE
375006 due 0917/ 20024 2,700 2,855
Westinghsaso Air Brake Technalegios Corp,
3.200% due 06152025 3,000 3,176
‘Wynn Les Vegss LLE
5.500% due 03,/01/2025 2,200 2,240
2F Morth Amevica Capital, inc.
A_T505% due 04/29/2025 1,400 1,509
FA D mEL 138,677

(EcfR R $103.058)

T I R U s 0.7%
LT

Augtralis asd Row Jealand Banking Group Lud,

QUD05% due 11/01/2021 13 13

Bank of Meva Scotia

0U005% due 11012021 1 1

BNP Paribas Bank

0.005% dus 11,/01/2021 87 ar

Citibank A

0U005% due 11,/01/2021 85 85

DBS5 Bank Ltd.

0.005% due 11,/01,/2021 36 €

DnB Bask ASA

QUD05% due 11,/01/2021 1 1

JPMorgan Chase Bank NA.

0U005% due 11/01/2021 1m 170

National Augtralis Bank Lud,

0.005% due 11/01,/2021 4 4

Royal Bank of Canada

0U005% due 11,/01/2021 17 17

Sumitema Miteul Basking Corp.

0.005% due 11/01/2021 336 336

Sumitome Mitsul Trust Bask Lid,

0.005% due 11,/01/2021 59 59
]
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PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31
18 i [ET
e i {

PCTRLY B85y ekl 1

0.050% due 03/31/2022 1) 5 100 H 100

e e B 904
(PR so04)

i A SEE R B 09.0% % 362567
(R FREE $58,424)

FORORRE LUAN, ME0TY 2418

R s $ 364,985

R AR T SR Tl )

¥R, FRIERICEREA SERRBEEERLTHLZ ENRE,
] WEBERES,
bl Fe—tn, ERETOMNED BT,

0 AR o 0 2 T

ELFIE, VAF » o K= <RSI 7 o o ForF VAT 4 IR EENOBE TR S, Py ROl A c-ove T, IR
HFSEReE T [RERY 2B LIREORD T 2l R0 L

2021 4R 10 A 31 BEM T LM oRANEE oS8T U 47 £ THEOES
oo P L LT ESRENFT T AF « TS

BRRK  SLTy MR ST 4R ABTERE SN at
A7 U AT o FEERIS SR SRR (R
TEENRS] SReF V27 o RS

H AT L s u} 5 48 1 (4] s 1] 5 u} ] 48

TR, eLiE10 8 n BRED, 7rr FOEES I CAREEES S SH4 7 s MERIZ - T IS A EEINECRE TS
0L 46 10 H 31 ABE
AFSN =L - HF ALY — Lot ] Lot Lt 8 & TE G
TR,
A=A BT
ial| 5 0 & 4419 ] o % 4419
L
bid: o 7am o 7ar
gt i
i o 910 [ 310
Iro = MR
Hi ] 5,688 o 9,688
P
TEA ] 4,140 o 4,140
ol
i) o 18971 o 18471
| S
i 0 1,351 o 1,351
FAFE
bidle o 17,352 o 17,352
A A5 R
fEi o 4,184 o 4,184
£ & YT
thim 0 12058 o 12,058
H#*%
PEf ] BA32 o B4
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PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31
HE1 R0 H 31 BRYE

HFLY—H RS « HF ] — Lot ] Lot g Lt 3 e AR
HERERES, MHE

£

- § o 5 4303 3 o § 4,203
oG A

18 1] 17,981 o 17,581
A e i a—

Hei a 2,608 o 2,608
e W=k

P 0 2,951 0 2,951
Ll

g 0 198 0 199
e 1 o |

g 0 11,658 o 11,658
A3 =

i 0 35,286 o 35,286
T A hEw

i ] 198,677 il 198,677
A iR 0 03 0 508
1255 4 MRRERF & B - a 5 362,567 5 0 5 362,567

SOx A 10 M 31 BISERT LA, Lol e S SR R A
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities rew

PRI PRI

L= B (=1} PR Corg bgorm
Herruda Liw Wa1pag el U E Bermu U Corporm
Iuraten Tiopr it High el et High Tiekd Fared Bere! Fared
scorw Fund T i (1] A0

Aszets:
Inprman & ke

566,186 I3 F35 § 18256
¥ 1 ] | ]
1,188 1,132 lis] 1] i
g JH1E 3 T
Forps I 1]
P i 1 B L] 1
8 for T —] o [
blg for Fumd umity sold 0 [ ]
o deeadanchs recenvabin I8 4 16 1 676 a8
padin el i [44 LENy 3 Al

Lisabilities:

Borrowsos & Oefer Fraocig Trosachon

5 ] ¥ 2.2 % B 0
I i} 1]
483 L, b | Ia il
(T3 ) 1
14,81 5142 L] !
0 ! ] il
3,305 1 ] ] ]
13? ]
L] i 1]
14 o 1,503 1] 075
1] 1]
W il 0
0 L 0 43 1]
1] 1] |
0} ] ¥
0 C 0 0 B
[\ 1] 0 Fil ]

S5 7 3 § ERE,
(1] § §
13,161 4 4
v intirninls, el 5 617 3
A £ Hh
[ A M WA
" A WA
UL NiA
W& 1 MK WA
b | g e vl Fpary | Do 31, 1031
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities we

PR o2 )
PTD By PRI PALD Loy g
Herrids Low Worgag Berrudha U 5 Hermuchs U5 Corporese
[hraten Dpparurele Hagh 'f el Fured Fg Toedd Furd Bare Fared
Srezem Fard Frd ] Ban Fuisa)
Units lssued and Outstanding: (] ik T8 SR 541 W
{5 Mik NI L] L
= L 03 M HA "
J S WA N WA K&
50 Hi'A N W' wE
' M 5 a3 5 %4 75 K
K L ] & 30 545 S
i A M il 3
A WA ?
A 4 5 63 J
WA ¥ 4,75 i K K
I 85 11 n W T
¥ 10 5 |
ezl n | T W 3 I B W i
Fiow g B vl Fagarr | st 3
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Statements of Operations weu

PRI flerrui Pk} P Corg bgorm

B o LW Wongege Bermuda LU 5 Bermum U5 Corporm
Dharnters Dpcortumtes High Vil Hagh Feld ored Fard
ircore Fard Hund Hurd Furd B 1 p. o0l

Investmant Income;

! ] 3 8,10 & 1 2
3,268 .70 1 !
] w
NiA 457 Wi Wik
1] 0 ng 2
1] ) 1 HE
i ey,
H T

a1 Ivestmant |ncome 13280 0432 6025 £ 520

Nat Realizad Gala flosst
3 Jul s

T 3441 iy
LA Lo
m ) 4
1] !
W Reylawd Gaen iLigg! e 13,51 17,408 PR i)
Nat Change in Unsraaliced iat iatioal:
= == 1481 154 143
WP i !
=
3l 1
o : =
4 35

et Incinase {Decrouta) in Not Azsals Resulting lrom Oparations § 5 28 E 15,361 ] 35815 ] LA 5 12508

* Formgn baers

4 £ ] | E
ot Detaber 15 00 Sntpion dasw s Seasier 11, 200
Firh i g i W Ravs g | Qs 31, 03
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets ey

PRL) rmuh PricE PRET] Loy by
Bl Liswi W B U 5 B U S s
Dirgten Dpeortmtes High ¥igid Hisgf: Wiaid el Farnd
e Hand urd hurd ME Forsd @ G AT

Increase [Decrnazs] in Net Azsets from:

§ & g %
= ]
A A KA KA WP
H 07 KA A M4
b T L b W&
N KA WA WA
1 Wi N ML
iiA L v L N4

Fund Unit Transactions

ME! etreis | i) reuilng 1rod hefd ut 1adsactedd” 138 110 e Ak 2B/ aN

Total Increasa [Decreass) in Nat Assats W4 14,045 |TE 170 14,53 304 655

Kat1 Assels:

Begrnang of yee 013 ]

Erd of ym & & 25,187 & & 64 G55

= Seaalet st St oo Dctadyr
e e 17 om e M o Fruncal Striems
Ter armmpary iy win Bl Raport | Oetalb 31, DT
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Financial Highlights cem

P} Bermads
WS High Vied Fund
A

WEStmant opeghions

Total detnbutons

Fod 8t ol e

Cormmra® Beretl PN Eswrgiyy PRI Esmeging
s 200 Beord [VervFadged T Ereeging Sond g Fard
e lrearma Ber Ingnme el o

ng Elires? axperoe

e £ detr i OTTE o st ey o Dt TSNS CRTIMCE

P T P R
bt e T Fusted' 3 peped coveedr B e LT, dnlar Braeve, i Asp pinewen) a bvmaro o She
¥ FIEL ISP, B

Sieh blC PRRA R e BT vl Raport | oo 1, 23

155/286



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION

Each Furd discussed in this repon {each a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds™), which also inclsdes each diass of units of that Furd {pach a "Class™ and coffectively,
the "Classes”), is @ series trust of PACO Bermuda Trust 8 {the " Tnust” ), an open-ended unit trust established under the laws of Bermuda as a mult-series. trust
pursuait 0o o tried déed esduted by Winchestid Global Trest Company Limited oh December 1, 2003 {36 amihdid eom time o bme, the ™ Trost Desd" ) Eflecne &
of the chose of business (Eastern tme) on September 79, 2017, Maghes Teustee Senvdoes (Bermuda) Limited “Trustes™) was appoenied as trustee of the Trust
Pacfc Imvestment Management Coempany LLC ("PIMCO”, the “Manages™ o the “lmvestment Adwiser” ) is the spomsor of and was responsible for stratturing the Trust
Beown Brethers Hamiman & Ca {BRH") had enlened sl an agreement walh 3tate Steet Corporaton | 5ate Streel” | wnder which Sabe Street will scguae BEH's
Imeestne Senvices business: which includes its austody, Tund accounting and admnsiration, ransfer agency, depesitany, faregn exchange, tnustee and secunties Jending
services. The tramsaction is expectad 10 be completed in the fiest quarter of 2032, subpect to ustomary dosing conditons and regulatory approvals

The Tnast is subject 10 regulation and supenvision as provaded Tor in the Imeestment Funds Act 1006 and related nules relating 1o slandard funds.

The termns of the Trust Deed corder upon the Trsstee, vath the consent of the Manager, the pases, in the future, to establish further fumds in addition to the Funds
cusrently in operation as of the date of thes report

References to undtholders {each, a "Umthclder®, and colloctively, the *Unithelders™) i, or units of {or an investment inl, the Fund shall mean Unithalders of the Fund
who hiodd units, of casses ol umits (a5 applicable), which ane attmbigable to 1hat Fund

The Funds peesented in this repost ae listed befow

ANCT Befrmosls Bk | oo Ford A Offered anly t Forsdts werh 3 "Fund ol Fusds™ snuetarn, i dartedl i Ol Tt £F (he bl imo] Tt Adacdien
PMCD Bermads Bank Losn Furd B Jagun, o in any sthar predoon
FIMCD Barreoeds Bl [ ooy Fusd €
AN Bty Bak | g Furd 0
PAMC Barrnds bcoms Fusd 0
PINCD Bveseeds iraion Fond £
PIMCD Bermes Dymamc Mofo-8zmmt Saanegy Fund
AMC] Beredts Lw Doraton btom Fasd
AN Emargng Band frepme Fiasd 0
| PN Evargeng Baod Fcome Fund W

PIMICD Bermandy Basi Losn Fussd (M Gefored only o onber Funds 0o serve a5 an weederying evveaomen e Jo meh Fands
PAMC] Boirowds Erond g Maricats Boad ifund £EM1

AMC] Barmeets Glsbal Apgragies Ex-Jopen Basd Fasd M
PAMCD Barreds bcorar Fesd (W)

FNCD Batrsely U 5. Fagh Vgl Fund (M1

PIMCD Bermes U 5. Figh Yinkd Fund B (M|

AMC] Ensigug Boad rcgree Fuad M1

PMED Borrmests Erergng Marhoes Bast Fund H CFered o oo and ofier meman
ANCD Batrecsty Glebal Agrraginn Ex-Japan (i Hidgdl Bosd Fund
FIMCD Bormedy Global Aggrogas Ex-Japan Boad Fuad

AMC] Bermeds bcoma Feed A°

ANCO Bivaeets Meitgi Oppartanto fusd” '

PMED Core bncome Corporme Bond Fond 253105

PIMECD LIS, High Yisld | Yee-Hedgnd] Fresd

ANMEZO LS High Yield Ford B

PMCD 115 Hagh Yield Startegy Fund

ANED L5 High Yol Sewtagy hesd |

FIMIO0 Wisrid High Income™"**

PANED Shert-Terrn Mot |nsama e o g dend gthel oweiory Ussts of th EUR, JPY ard USD Disisim e sid 1 cwmd erisien o

apan by waey of peble: oering thsegh a detrbenon w Japas, and mary be offersd 12 other Pvesters ot the
et gl i Miccgai Lseti ol tha DU, JPY o K50 Clicias wll boi istinclied 15 galy thisa wiilor wha bl

B0 by T N

ML Ervargeng oad rie-Hudgedl oo fuwd il ey T Fd off oty Tept Jigiesiid enolemi] Dossi SIpAnCRd wilil The Liny Contirany |swiiimael
AMCO Emergeag Eand income fund Trext ared Inweesman Campany il Jspan 1 lspane e bwveiment Trosts”) which well sl S asesy 10 the peblc
AMCD LS. Heh Yaeld | Yer-Hudid | Faid ik ittt by wiry o poble Mg 66 pinite plicee] atd wheh asi i by PINED Jigi L5 o othed

2ralnr I Bnand IR [TUET PURARETYRS (Omnpia! BoS fubpet 5 raes of the brommer Trem

FMD S High Yisld Fored
1 L

sl Ragest | Dessher 31, 20071 1l
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The fellewing is a summarny ol sigrificant acccunting polices comsistently
Telicwed by the Trust in the preparation of &5 fnancal statements in
conlaemity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of Amenca ("U 5 GAAP™) Each Fund is treated as an investment compamy
under the teporting requiremnents af LS. GAAP. The preparation of finsncial
sratements i acoardancs vath U S GARP isgunes management 1o fake
estimates and assumptions that affect the repored amounts of assets and
lighities and disclosure of conbingent astets and habdities at the date of the
firancwl stanements and the neporbed Smounts of increases and decieases in
net assets from operations dunng the reporting period Actual results could
differ from those estimates

Ia} Acsived Fumds The Trustes and Manager may apely all ¢ a portion of
the assets of (5) FIMCD Bermisda Bank Loan Fund A, PIMCD Bermuda Bank
Laan Fund B, FIMCO Bermusda Bank Loan Furd C and FIMCO Betmuda Bank
Laan Fund O {s) FIMCO Werld High Income; () PIMCOD Barmuda Global
Al]a]rrg..lu: Ex-lapan {Yern-Hodged) Bond Fund and PIMCD Bermuda Glabal
Aggregate Ex-lapan Bord Fund; (v} PRACO Beimuda Income Fund A, PIMCO
Bermuda Income Fund D and FIRMCO Bermmuda Income Fund E; () PIMCO U5
High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund, FIMOD LS. High Yoeld Fund, PIMICO LS

High Vel Sarategy Fund, and AMCOES High Yeeld Strateqgy Fusd 1 (v
PINCO U 5. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund Il and FIMCO U5 High Yield Fund
I; i} PRACO Emerging Eond (Yer-Hedged) Intome Furd, PINCO Emenging
Hand Incame Fund, FIRCO Emeging Bond ncome Fund 11, and P )
Emenging Bond Incame Fund Il (each referred to herein a8 a "Fund of Funds®
or "Acgquining Fund®, which imests in ciher Funds) to the nespective credit of
(1) PIMCO Bernuda Bank Loan Fund (8] (i) PRACD Bermuda Emenging
Matkets Bond Fund (M); (i AMCO Bermusda Global Aggreqate Ex-lapan
Beend Fund (M); {rv] FINICD Besmada Incoene Fand (M iv) FIMICD Besmuda
U5 High Yield Fund (M) {vi} FIMCO Bermuada U.5. High Yield Fund 1 (M)
{va) PIMCO Emerging Band Income Fund (M) {refered to herein & an

" Aucquired Funds)” . Any assets so applied will be held in such Acquired
Fundls] a5 if recerved dinectly, Where assets ane 50 applied, the Sogured
Furdfs) wall cecoed the fssue of unins 1o the ielevant Ao rany Fund & the
tssue price per unif af such urats and wall repurchase such units at the
repurchase price pee urel of such units at the tme of repunchase. Accandingly,
the by ol the Acquirig Fund! to acheess 115 meestmient obpsctneg vl
depend upon the ability of the applicable Acquired Fund to achieve its
imeestment ehjective: There can be no assurance that the investment chjective
of 1he Acquited Fund wall be achieved

Ratios shovan in the Finarcial Highlights do not indude expenses of the
Aogped Fund(s). See Note 8, Fees and Expenses, for Further information
reqgarding fund feet, a5 spphcabile

[b] Securities Transactions and Invesimant lseoma Securtios Bansachions
are recoeded as of the trade date for financal reporting putpases. Securities
purchased or sold on a wherrissed or delayed-delivery basis may be

settled beyond a standard settlement peniod for the seowity after the rade
date Realized gains and losses From seousites sold are recoeded on the
identifed cost basis. Dividend income i recorded on the ex-dividend date
except certan dindends fom foreign seasities where the ex-doridend date
gy e parised, wihich ate nicanded & $o00n a5 3 Fund o mfeemed of 1he
ex-dividend date. Enterest income, adjusted for the accretion of decounts and
amortization of premeums, is recoeded on the aconual basis from setthement
dane, with the exteption of seoutities with a farward starting effecte date
whede interest income is tecoeded on the accrual basis from effectoe date. For
corwvertible securities, premiums attributable to the conversion feature are not
amertned Estmated tax labilities on gentain I'p'r::_ln wCutifae e revgnded
on am accrual bas and are teflected as components of inferest incame of net

change in unnealized appeediation (depredation) on imestments on the
Staterments of Operations, a5 appeopriste. Tax hababties realited &5 2 nesuly of
such secunty sales are refected & a component of et realzed gain loss) an
imvestments on the $atements of Operatiors. Paydown gains and losses on
miigage-related and other asset-backed secuntes, i any, are recorded a5
components af interest mnoome on the S1atements of Operations

Dbt ohigations may be placed on non-accrual status and relabed interest
rrcome may be reduced by ceasing cuntent accruals and whibing alf ens
recefvable when the cofection of all or a portien of intesest has become
doubthul based on consistently applied procedures. A debt obligation is
removed from non-accrual status when the iiswer resumes interest payments
o when collectatslity of intenet is probable

The financial staberments of PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2000-
10 included in this report are for the persod from Dictober 15, 2020 inception
date] 1o Qctober 31, 2011 Accounting policies were consistently appled Tos
the peroad ended October 31, 3020 and through the year-ended October 31,
M2 Activity of the fund duing ihe period ended October 21, 1020 included
capital contribyfions, imvestments and operating expenses ingutted th Start
and operate the fund The Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the pediod
from Odiober 15, 2020 (date of inception} through October 31, 2020, for the
year-ended October 31, 021, and for the period from Qctober 15, 2020
{date of inception) theough Ociober 31, 2031 is as Tollows

LT

The financial staterments of PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Mult-Asset Strategy
Furd includied in this teport are for the period trom Coinber 30, 2020
{inception date] to Dctober 31, 2021, Accounting policies were consstently
Fpphied Tor the period ended Ocober 31, 2000 and through the vear-ended
October 31, 2001 Actity of the fund during 1he period ended Ocobar 31,
2030 included capital constbutions, Fwvestments and operating expenses
incurfed to 4o and cperate the fund The Statement of Changes in et
Assets for the period from October 30, 2020 {date of incepticn] through
Oxctober 31, 2000, bor the year-ended October 31, 2021, and for the peviod
frem Chctobeer 30, 2020 (date of inception} through October 31, 2001 & &
Tollows:

il et | Dessbar 31, 2011 e
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Notes to Financial Statements ce

Ie] Cash and Forsign Carremey  The financial statements of sach Fund are
presened wsing the curency of the primary econcmic emdsonment in which it
operates (the "functional cumency”™). The Functional ourrency for eadh of the
Funds 15 bited in the below table

The market values af Borelgn secunties, cuerency haldings and ather assers
and liabilities are franslabed wix eadh Fund's functional cutrenty based on the
current exchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of secunties
and incame and Exgende ibern denomingted in ‘d|r||||' cureenc, & iy,
translated into each Fund's respectve functional cumendy at the exchange
rate in effect on the transaction date. The Funds do not separately report the
effects of changes in foreign exchange rates from changes in madket pekces ea
securities held Suth changes are induded in net reafoed and et changes in
unseatzed gain or loss from imeestments on the Statements of Opesations
Thae Funds. may imeest in 1:IIHF|"| cyfmendy denominated deouiteis and may
engage in fareign currency ranseaclions sither on a spot (cash) basis at the
rate prevailing in the currency ewchange market at the time or thicugh a
Torward fovesge currensy contract Realined foreign enchange gains or loises
anure from sabes of spat foreign currences, curency gains of losses eealized
between the trade and settfiement dates on secunities ransactions and the
difference between the recorded amounts of daedends, inferest, and loreign
wathbeolding tases and the Bunctaonal urency equvalent of the amoungs
actually recerved o paid ace incuded in net realized gain or loss an foreign
currency transactions on the Statements of Operations. Nel wnnalzed foreign
exghange gaing and losses atising from changis a0 loeesgn exchange rates on
Teevign denoemmated dsets and Habditses other than imestments in securities
held at the end of the reporfing penad are nduded in net change i
unrealped appreciation of deprenation an fxewn curency assets and
listities on the Staements of Operations

The Ket Assat Value ["NAY™) and total retusns. of cerlain Funds {or Classes
theepal a5 apphicable) ate pretented in the ;.llrr'x\_,-!m whisch the NAY i
reparted (the " MAY curency” ) as detailed in each Fund's Offierng
Memarandum (the ~Offering Memarandum™). For the pupeses of the
preseniation of the NAY and the total netum in the NAY curengy, the
beginning and ending MAVs are comeerted using the permod beginning and
ending exchange rates, respectively, and dsirbutions are comerted wsing the
enchange rale a8 the hime af the deitnbution. See the Id!nmm] Sable fod the
WAy cumency of each sespecte Fund

Fanetienal
Fuad Class: MAY Cavrency :
PIMCD Berrrapd Fank oas Rund (W UE dollsr UE dollst
FIKCT Bermuds Bank Loas Fund A
«  FILSO U5 dollar U dlar
+ Jum Jypaneenyen | U5 dolwr
s JIBE Japanese yen UE dolai
. VI Jaganee e 115 dolar
«  YiUEm Japeness yen LS. dollar
PIKED Berrrusds Bark Loss Fundl B
«  [FiALUDS Bmtglan dolar | U5 dolar
= Y[R Japaness yen IFS: dolar
« YBAL Jngarrecs e 5 dola
= TN Japanese yen ! LS dollar
« T{RUBI Japanens yee U5 dolar
= YTRY apanime yen IS dollar
FIKECD Beerruda Bank Lias Fund ©
*  YICALD Jaganes yem 115 dolar
PINCD Bermusda Bank [oas Fund
* Yl apane e U5 dollas
FIMCD Bermuda Dyreeme; Mok ases Sircegy Fund
= Jum e 115 dodar
L) Ui US doller UE dolar
PN Berras Emergng Merkets Bond fard (M1 A5 golks LIS dolar
PILCO Barrasdy Emaegeng Markets Bend Fard 0
- rest [ Y] Japonese yen LS dolat
# i LY, Hedgadl Japaness e VS dolar
ﬁlmmﬂtﬂwwu&hmum L e 115 dodar
PIMCD Bermuds Gldbal Aggregatn Ex-Japan Bond Fund - | Japaness yen k5. doflar
:::D:[! Barrmasde (otsal Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fusd - 115, dlar
PN Bevmuss bgema Fued (M1 UScie | U5 il
PINCD Barrrasdy lpoma fand A
« FLF Japaness yen U5 dollar
- FIusn US doller WS dolar
*  JUPR Japaness yen 115 doar
« JOGD Japantse e LS. dollar
- EiUsm U5 chiler U5 dola
* K LPY Eveany Japanes yen LIS dollar
= MIUED Advmsiy S dollr LS. dalwr
& NPy Japanese ye LS dolar
+  Nilsh Japaness yen WS dolar
+  NMuED US dollor 115 dolar
= FUF Japaness e U5 dolr
+ QLA Japantse pen 15 doliar
- A LFT e e IS challar
L ey | US dodar
=  Tum Japanise LS dollar
*  UUSH U5 doller U5 dotar
+  WuEnl US: doller LS dolar
. XLEY Jaganesg pen U5 dolar
+ K[ED U 5. dollar 1S dolar
LI dapesa e | US dol
- LR Japeneseyen | LS dollar |
* i dapmentyen | US dolw
FINECD Bermisda lncoma Fund D
= NHIAUDI Arnban dollar | U5 dollar
= ¥ {Wrdi Jaganesy pm S dolar
PIRCD Berrrasda b Fusd E
« BJ RSP Japanese e Jparese yen
* B-J FE]S [LS0) Jafeness yen Jipanise yEn
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Fusctional
FusediClass: NV Curessey e aiai
«  BJIBDELIF JSaphtenn yon JEpaTeE
o B N60Y9 S0 Jeparess yen Japanes yen
s BJIIZEIFY Bpsteyen | Japanes yes
*  BJOBID A0 Jeparaae yen Jnpanee ver
NI Bermuda Lo Derstion income Fund
+ BBt U5 delw ['H dolar
PERCT) Bormada Morigage Qportenities Fund
= b LIPY Hedged| Jopareas yen 5. dodler
w 4 1P Jepanese yon 013, dollor
= JUsDl Jepasene yen U5 doliar
L 1S dallar US dolir
PRI Bt U5, Figh Ve Frd A TUSdb  [uS ol

| PABACD Bermoda U5 Bigh Yiekd Fund & W

PACTY Corn lncome Corporate Bond Fund 20020 KD

« Us0 UE dallr 05, ol
PRMCT) Emasgng Biond [Yien-Hisdpad) ncom Fusd bpanme yon US dolar
PEMCTH Ermerpen Boad bgonma Fund Jepaneis yen [15. dollar

| PEMACTD Ermer gy B Inciorrs (el [ MI 113 detur W5 doer
PEMCT} Emargeng Boad Inpome Fued 1

w JIAUDY Jxatens yon 05, doliar

- JIBRL Joparea yen 03 dollor

o JitAD Japsenn yen 5. dollyr

- J{0AI Bgarese yon U3 dollr

= MR Japasens yen LS. dodiar

s JiEmM Jopanme yen U5 dodlar

- JINGN| Bghdeme i 05, doli

= JiRug| Japanese yen U5 doliar

s JTRF Jpatens yin LS. doflar
PUNICT) By Bl It Fusd (1

® JHELE Japarese yen 05 doliar

»  JIGEF Jepareds yen U5, dedar

w JiusD Japaceme yen B3, dollar
PEMCTY Short: Tenm kortgage intome

« HR Fuez WS, dollar

- 1 Japacens 0 ELS, dollar

»  JPVLIPY, Hedgedl ] LS dodlr

= =0 LFS. defle U3 dollar

FRMLT LIS, High Yusld (Ve ecipach fued

TAIACT 11 5 Hligh Yekd [Vedlecigod] Furd B

Japanems yen 3. doliar

| PMCT LS High Yeeld Fued Jipacsns yin UL, dellor

FAMCO 11 5 High Yasld Fued 1 Jpatessyn | UG dolr

PEMED 1 5 High Yeld Straingy Fund

a  JIUFN JpEteRE e L5 dod
o JLPY, Hedged] Jpacose yon U, dofor
«  Jlusm % doflar 05 doder
. YLIPH Jopaneme: yon U3, dollar
= W LIFY, Hadged Bpstemzyen | LS dol
PiCT W 5 High Yosld Striegy (Fued |1
® Y ALDH Joparene jen U5, dollar
s ¥IERL Josensyen | US. dodr
e Yk Japarens yen US. doller
| = YITAY] Joanme yen 5. dollar
| PML) Worid High bcome 5. deilat k5. doliar

|d) Multickasa Dpsrations Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
raghts o the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the same
Fund, except for specific assets and gars and losses designated 10 a Tlass
refating to cuerensy hadging aperations. income, non-Class specifc expendes,
and mon-Class specfic realized and unrealized capital gars and losses are

afiocated 1o each Class of units based on the relatie net assets of each Class
al the negpective Fund Class ipecific experrses asrently include
management, advesory, administratie, agendy, and distribution feas, wheze
aplicable

{a) Diaribution Paliey The follnwing table shows the anbiopated requency
of distributions for each Fund Distrbutions from each Fund may be decdared
and disttibuted ta Unitholders only upon the authanzation of the Manddger
which aushonzation may be withheld at the Managers disceetion

Declared and Paid Mosthly:

PIMCD) Bormmeas Bank Lsan Fund A
PMCD Bormeada Bank Lsan Fund B
PIMCT) Bermuds Berk Loan Fund G
PMCD Berrmuds Bark Loan Fusd
PN Berrmdy Income fond &
FLIPT
F IS0
JLIR)
JELED)
NP
N RUSDH
NN 101
S19
£ Y]
X [LED
T1T]
¥ ILED
PMCT Bermeda bngome Fard 0
PIMCT) Bermuds Memgage Opsomerni: Furd
= JUM
& JilsO
- {1575
PG Ernegeng Bond |Yen-Hedged!: Ireoms Fusd
FIMCD) Emeegeng Bond Incoms Fund
PMCD Emesging Bond lacoma Fund Il
AMCD Emerpng Bond Incorma Fund [
PINED) 15 Heph Vsl [¥ien-Hadged] Fund
PMCD LS Fagh Yisid Fusd
AMCD LS Fegh el Straagy Fusd
PIMCD LS. Fagh Yisld Stratsgy Fuedd Il
PINE 0 World High Incoma

Deelased and Paid Duarterly:

PNCD Berrrotia Ingorms Furd A

w QL
PYMC0! Brermmeasde I Fand £ iprovided that the deadiend yiskd thall be ro bigher thas
5% ey BOSUM (vl By one-yeae paling pened)

@ 4 & & & & & & § & & @

Declased and Paid Semiannualiy:

PIMCD Bermela Dyramic Maks- Az Sowiegy Fusd
PMCT) Bervraads leeorme Furd &

- B LY

= AL
PINCT) Shory-Term Morngags income

Lssudl et | Dessbe 3. 2011 T
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Thar Manager dses not epect to deglare distributbans with respeet to thege
Fundt lor Clates thereol, [f applicabiel, but may, in it discretion, declare and
pay disiributions fo the Usitholders at any G,

PIMED Bermuda Bank Loan Fand (M)
PIMC] Barmuda Emerpng Markets Bond Fund [M
PO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund 1
PO Blermurds Giokal Aggregene Ex-Jogan [Ven-Hidged! Bond Furd
PRACO Beremsuds obsal Aggragete Ex-Jepan Bond Fard
PO Bermsids Blobal Aggregate Ex-Jegran Bond Foned (M)
PMED Bermixda Income: Fund A
- (A1)
- M P Adewmory|
- M LB Advnry|

. TLPY
- Wjusm -
- W IlSE
- 2 LI

PRACD Bermuda Incoeme Fund (W0
PRADD Bermuda Low Duraios bcome Fund
PG Baemoda klorigage Deporiunities Fund

* ot LIPY Heged)
PIACD Bermuda U S High Yiedd Fund {1
PACD Bormerda U5 High Yiedd Ford B 1M
PRACD Core Income Corporte Bosd Fund 107010
PACO Emergpry Blond Ircoma Rard (M
PIRICK U1 5. Highs Wil (Yer-Hedgedsi Ford B
PAMACD 1 5: High Yinkd Fard B

* Mavy dtrebuanes wath respect 1o Class U (USTH Units of fhe Funed well be dockered n
pecordarce with B lrier sgeeement beoween the Mirager snd the srvetor i nch Dy

Distributsans, if amy, will generaly be made from the refevant Fund's {or
Class's, i applicable) net investment income. In addition, the Manager may
authonre the payment of req realized capit gairs available for dissnbanion
Addienal distelbutons may be dedared as the Manager deems apprepnate
Distributions paid with respect 1o 3ny Fund (o Class thereod, if applicable)

wall reduce the NAY of such Fund (or Class thereal, if applicable) 1 the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash distrbutans from a Fusd {or Class theteed,
if applcabilel may esther be reimvestad in additional unsts of a Fund (or Class
theseol, d applicable) or paid 1o a Unitholder in cash. Cash payments will be
paid in the NAV cumency of the Fund Each Fund {or Class thereal,
applicable) may declaee further distributions i considered necessary  onder
ta matntam a reaonale beeel of dutnbamions Tor a Fund (ar Class thereol i
uﬁ:llt..'b‘r] In thie esvint it thene i inddeguate net indome &0d net realded
capital gains to pay a distribution of a Fund (or Class thereal, if applicable)
requeed by the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distribution
contrsting of a potion of the capital of such Fund (or Class thereal,
applicabie) Distrbutions not coflecied within st years from their due date

will Lapse and will accrue to the benedit of the relevant Fund (or Class thereaf,
il applcable]

11 New Accounting Pronowss amonts and Rogulatary Updates In March
2020, the Financal Accounding Standards Board (" FASE™) issued an
Amountng Standards Update (TASU™), ASU J020-04, which pronides
opnanal gudance to exe the potental soooring burden asocsed with
transitsoning away from the Losdan Interbank Offered Rate {"LIBOR"} and
other reference rates that are expecied to be discontinued The ASL is
effectve immedistely upon refease of the update an Mardh 17, 2000 through

December 31, 2027 At this time, management is evaluating the impfications
al these changes on the inkecial statements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ia) Invesimant Yaluation Policies The price af & Fusd € umits is badsd an
thes Fund's NAY. The NAV of a Fund, or each of s Classes, as applicable, s
determaned by danding the total value of portlolio imvestments and other
assets attnbutable 1o thay Fund o Class, less any liabilities, by the total
number af wnits cuistanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealieg
Dy (a5 described in the curent Offering Memeeandum of the

Trust], Fund units are ordinandy valued a5 of the dose of reqular tradng on
the Mew York Stock Exchangs |*MYSE Close™) Infaimation that becomes
Erscrvn 1o the Funds or thelr agents after the ime as of which NAY has been
cakoulated on 3 particular day wall not generally be wsed o retactively adpust
the price of & security of the NAV deteimined earlier that day. Each Fund
resaves the right bo change the time as of which igs NAV is caloulated §

thae Fund closes. earfier

Foe pusposes ol caleulating MAY, porthalsd securities and ather assets for
which market quates ane readily available ate valued at market value. Market
value is gererally determined on the basis of offical dosing prices or the kst
reporied sife prices, of d no Lhfes me repaitied, baed an quotes obtaned
firam estabBehed marker makers o prices fecluding evaluated peices) supplied
by the Funds’ appnoved pricing senvices, quotabion meporting systems and
ather thed-party sources (Rogether, ~Priang Senvices” ). The Funds wal
nammaly use pricing data foe damestic squity securties receved shorthy after
thie NYSE Close and do nod normally take into acoount frading, dearanges o
settiements. that fake place abter the NYSE Close. If market walue pricing is
wsed, & fareign (non-L 5 ) equity security traded on a foregn exchange or an
maore than one exchange i typically valued using pcng infoemation from the
euchange considered by PIMCO to be the primany exchange. A foreign {non
(1% ety secuny will Be valued o of the dose of trad i O the |D'|.'|:]||
exchamge, of the MYSE Close, if the NYSE Close oocurs befeee the end of
trading on the foreign exchange Domestic and Boreign (ncn-L.5.) fced
oM secunifes, non-exchange taded derrates, and equity options ane
romealy valued on the basis of quotes ohtained from brokers and dealers ar
Pricing Services using such data reflecting the principal markets for those
secunties. Prices obtained fram Pricing Sennces may be baied on, amang
oitber thargs, information peavided by marker mabers or estimates of market
values obiained from yiehd data relating 1o irvestrents of seoulites with
smila characterstics. Cerlain fed income secunities purchased on a

ey -Gl very bugrirs are marked 1o market daily until seftbement o thi
forward settlement date. Exchange-traded aptions, except equety options,
futures and options on futunes am valioed at the settlement price dedermined
by the relevant exchange, quotes abitamed from a guatation repating system,
estahlished market makers of praoing sendces. Swap agreements ane valued
on the basis of market-based prces supphied by Pricing Services or quotes
obitaned fnom brokers and deafers & Fund's imsimenss in oprrend
manaqement svestinent comparnes, albes than exchange-traded Tunds
{"ETFs™), are valued at 1he MAYs of such irvestments

H a faraign {non-L.5.) equity seoumty’s value has materialy changed alter the
chose of the secunsy’s pimary exchange o principal market but before the
NYSE Close, the security may be walued at fair value based on procedures
witablished and approved by the Manager. Foreign [non-U5 ) equty
securities that do not rade when the NYSE & open are aiso valued at far
value With respect 1o foreign (non-L 5.) equity securities, a Fund may
deteimane the far value of investiments barsed on information provided by
Pricing Sevecis and ofher thind-party vendors, which may ecommaend fair
value or adjustments wath reference 1o other securities, indioes or assets In
cl:ps;ﬁermg whether fair valuation is reguired and in dew'mnmn-; air

Lssudl et | Dessbe 3. 2011 -

160/286



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to Financial Statements

waliaes, a Fund may, ameng ather things, condider significant events (which
iy B cordadesid Lo include changes m the value al WS, sequritied o
securities indioes] that ooos afer the dese of the relesant matket and belore
the NYSE Close A Fund may utilize modefing tooks provided by thied-party
werdans 1o determing fait values of fonegn {non-U 5.) securibes. For these
purposes, any mevement in the appheable reference index or instrument
["zero trigger” ] between the earlier dose of the apphcabile Toregn markes
and the NYSE Clase may be desmed to be a ugnifscant event, prompticg 1he
applicazion of the peicing model (eflectvely resutting in dady Tair

waluations). Foreign exchanges may permit trading in Soreign fnon-U.5.)
equity secuities on days when the Trust 5 net open lor business, wiech may
result in @ Fund's portlolio imaestments being aflected whin Unithalders ate
unahbfe to by or sell units

Senior secured flcating rate loans for which an active secondary market exssts
1o & reliable deqree will be vatued at the mean of the Lst available bidriak
preces in the market fos siach loans, as provadied by a Pricing Senvice. Senioe
secured flioating rate loans Toe which an acve secondary markes does not
0§ 1o a rehable digrast will b valoed at fair value, which it mtended 10
appranmate market value Invalung 2 semior secured Moating rate loan a1
Faar valuse, the factors considersd may inchode, but are not imited to, the
Tolbowing: (a) the creditworthiness of the borrower and any intermediate
participants, (b} the veems of the baan, (g} tecent prices in the matker for
similar laans, if amy, and () recent prices in the market for instrements of
similiar quardy, abe, penod until nex mtenesd rale nefed and maturity

Imvestrments valued in currencies otfes than the furcionsl currency

of a Fund are converted to the funchional ouerercy wsing exchange rates
ebiained from Pricing Sendces. A5 a result, the value of such investments and,
in purn, thee KAV af thee Fund's unith many be affected by changes in the value
of currendes. in relation to the functional currengy. The value of irvestments.
traded in Soneign markets or denominated in ourrencies other than

the functional currency ey be affected sigmificantly on a day that the Tt is
not open for business. As a resuli, 1o the extent that a Fund hiodds foreign
[ron-U% ) investments, the value of those imestrents may change at times
whin you cannat purcharse, nedesrm o exchange units and the value of such
imvestments will be rellected in the Fund's et caloulated WAV

Imvestmends for which market quotes or market-based valuations are not
readity available are valued at fair value as determined in good faith by

the Manages of persons acting a1 thest direction The Manager hus adopted
methads for valuing secuities and other assets in ciroumstances where
market quotes arg nat readily available, and has delegated to PIMCO the
respansibility Tor apphang the s valostion mithads. In the event that market
quenes of market-based waluations ate not readdy available, and the security
or asset cannol be valued pursuant to a Manager approved valuation
misthod, the valoe of the secuty ar asset will be deteemined in good fath by
the Valuation Committee: Market quotes are considened not readily available
in oreumstances wheie theve is an absence of nament or religble markes
based data (e g vade nformation, badfask infarmation, ndcative sarket
quenations [*Broker Quotes”), Pricing Services” prices), indudng where
events oocur aftes the dose of the relevant market, but prior 1o the NYSE
Clase, that matesally aflect the values of the Fund's secuntses o ssets. In
additan, macker quates oo consdied moy read H avalable when, due 1o
extracedinary oroumstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
seiities trade da not open lor Trading for the entire day and ne other
markeq praces are deailable The Manager is resporabie far monitaning
significant events that may matenally affect the values of the Fund's securites
or assets and bor determaning whether the value of the applicable securities or
asgets should be resvatuated in Bght of such significant events

‘When a Fund uses faervaluation io determine the vaiue of a portiolie seowity
or other asset for purposes of cakulating s MAY, such evestments will not

be priced on the basis of quotes bom the primary market in which they ae
rachisd, bt rather may be priced by ancther method that the Msnagid of
peeesoers acung At thedr dinection believe reflects Tair value, Fair valuaten may
require subjective determinaticns about the value of a security. While

the Trust"s policy i internded 10 result = o calculation of 3 Fund's NAY that
Tairy reflects security values & of the teme of pridng, the Trust cannat ensuee
that fair walues determired by the Manager or persons acting at their
ditection would accurately reflect the peice that a Fund could obtann foe a
secunty if it were 1o dspose of that tecurity as of the tme of pricng (for
irestance, in a foroed or distressed sale}. The peices used by a Fund may differ
from the value that woald be realized if the secunties were sold

%) Fair Valoe Hisrarehy U5 GAAP descrbes fair value as the prce that

A Fighd veoield ticirad 0o all an didet .'sru.'rg‘.p'.rmﬂm & ey 1n i idirly
Transacton bapween market patopants at the measusement date
establishes a fair value hierarchy that pronitees inputs to vahuation methods
and recuites. dinchosune of the Fair value hierarchy, separately for each majce
cateqary of assets and habilitses, that seqregates far value measurements imo
fevels {Lewed 1, 2. o0 3) The inputs or methodelngy used forvaluing seourites
are not necessanly an indication of the ks assoosted with Evesting in those
secutities. Levels 1, 2, ard 3 of the fair value hietanchy are defined a5 follows:

® Level 1—{Quoted prices in active markets or emchanges for identical assets
and liabikties

® Level 2—Significant ather shiencablie inputs, which may mdude, bot ane
nat fimited to, quoted prices for smilar assets or Kabilites in markets that are
actrve, quoted prices for identical or similar assets o liabilties in markets that
At nod ek, inputs other than quoted prices that see obiereable far the
assets o Rabilities (such as interest rabes, yield cunves, wolatiities, prepayment
speeds, loss seventies, credit risks and default rabes) or other market
conobarited mouts

# Level 3—Significant unobsenable inputs based an the best mformabion
available in the croumstances, to the extent obsenvable inputs ane not
available, which may incsde assumptions made by the Manager or persons
aching at their desctan that ae used in determining the fair value of
ivestments

Assets or hiabilites categorzed as Level 2 or 3 a5 of penod end have been
translened betwesn Levels 2 and 3 since the prior period de 1o changes in
thax meshod wtilzed in valuing the imrvestments. Trasaders from Level 2 to Level
3 are a result of a change, i the namal course of business, Inom the wse of
valuahan methods l;wdtr,'Pm;ln_; Seraioes (Leved 20 5o the wie of a brobes
quobe o valuation technique which utilizes significant unobsenvable inputs
due to an absence of curent or rebiablie market-based data (Level 31

Transhers from Level 3 10 Level 7 are & result of che avaslability of cutrent and
reliable market-based data pieded by Pricirg Senvices or other valuatian
techrigques which wtilize significant chsenvable inputs

In accandarde wiih the requeements TR GAAF, the amounss of transfers
in and oul of Leve! 3, f matenal, ate dischosed in the Nobes to Schedule of
Irvestments for each respactive Fund

Foe Fair valuations wiang sigraficant unobservable inputs, U 5. GAAP iequires
1o dclose ransfers into and out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and
punchases and issues of Leved 3 assets and liabilities during the period
Additionally, L5, GAAP requres quantitative information regarding the
wagnificant uncbservabile rputs used in the desermination of Tair walue of
assets of Rabiles categonized as Level 3 in the fair value hiesarchy. in
aumedance with the requiresnents of LS. GAAR, a fair value hieracchy, and if
matenad, details of -.v:_|n||'||:..nl yngbsenvable mputs, have been induded i the
BMotes to Schedule of Ervestments for each respactive Fund
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Ie] Valuation Techniques and the Fair Valus Hisrarchy

Lewel 1, Lavel 2 sad Leval 3 teading sasets and irading labilities, a1

fair valon The valuation methods (of " techmiques™) and g dicant inguts
used i determheng the Tar values of portiabe secunties of ather assets and
ligbities cabegornzed as Level 1, Level 2 and Leved 3 of the fair value hiesarchy
are a fellows

Frued incceme securitied inchpdng oompocabe, comsemble 303 muncipsl Bonds
and rates, U5 govemment agenaies, U 5. treasury obligations, sovereign
1ssues, bank lpans, convertibie preferred securities and non-ll.5. bonds are
noemalky viued on the basis of quates cbisined Eiom brokers and deslers o
Priging Services that use broter-dealer quotations, repored trades o
walization estimates from their inbemnal pricing models The Pricing Senvices
inpernal models wee iputs that aoe obsennale such ik nduer detals, intenest
rates, yield ounves, peepayment speeds, credd niskwfspeeads, default rates and
quoted prices for similar assets. Securities that use simila valuation
techniques and inguts a5 described above are categorined ot Level 2 of the
Tasr walue Breraichy

Faed income securities purchased on a defayed -delivery basis ar as a
repurchase comemitment in a3 saée-buyback ransaction ane marked to markel
daily wetil sertement a1 the Terward sertdemant date and are categotized &
Leseel 2 of the fair value hiesarchy,

Mottgage-telated and asset-bached securities ane usually ssued a5 separate
panches, of clasdes, of secunses within cach deal These wecuriies ane 3450
normalky vabued by Pricing Seraces that use beoker-dealer quotations,
reparted trades or valaation estimates from their mbennal prioing models. The
pricing madels for these securties usually consider tranche-level atinbutes,
ourrent market data, estmated cash flows and marke-based yield spreads for
each tranche, and incompaorate deal collateral perdormance, as available
Maorgage-telited and dsset-backed securities that e simitar valuation
technigues and inputs a3 dedcribed aberce are cabegonzed a0 Level 2 of the
Tanr walus hierarhy

Comman stacks, ETFs, exchange-teadid notes and linancal derrratnee
instrumenis, such as fugures contracts, nghts and waeranis, of ogitions an
futures that are traded on a national securities exchange, are stated at the
last reported sale or sestlement price on the day of vatuation To the extent
theis secuntien ane oty traded and valyatan adjustments ane nal appled,
they are categovized as Level 1 of the Fair value hierandhy

Imves tmients valued {denominated) in curnencies ather than the functional
ey of a Fund 3¢ comened to the funclional cuinengy uhing exchangs
rates [curency sped and Sorward rates) obténed from Pricing Sendces. As a
result, the NAV of a Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value of
garrenies in relation to the funclional cumency. The walue of securities traded
in Fereign markets or denaminated m curmenciess other than the functianal
currency may be afiected significantly on a day that the Trust is not open for
busiretid. Valudtion adjusiments may b dpplied 50 oorlain secunties that ane
spledy raded on a fareign exchangs 1o ccount fal the market movement
between the dose of the foseign markes and the NYSE Close. These seourities
are valued using Pricing Services that consider the correlation of the trading
patterns of the faetgn security 1o the intraday radng in the U 5 markets for
imestments. Securities wung these valuaton adjustments are categorized as
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Prefesred securities and other equities
radid on inactve markess or valued by relenence 1o ssmeli instiuments s
also categorized as Level 2 of the Fair value herardhy

Equity-linked securities are valued by referencing the last reported sale o
settlement price of the linked referenced equity on the day ol valuation
Foreign exchange adjustments ate applied to the Last reported price to

comvert the linked equity's trading cutrency o the contract’s settling camendy
TRt mvvestments ate cateqonged as Livel 2 ol the Tair value hierachy

frrestrments in registened open-end erestment comparees (othes than ETFs)
will be valued based upan the NAYS of sudh imestments and are categotized
a% Level 1 of the Lan value hierarchy bmogstments in unregistened open-tnd
irnvestment companies will be caloulated based upon the MAVS of such
irvvestments and are considered Leved 1 providied that the MAVs are
oesenable, caloulatied |‘..||I','.:1d are thevalue at whech both puechaset and
sales well be conducted

aluation adjustments may be applied to certain exchange traded futures and
apticers b9 aciount for market movesent between the exchange setilement
and the WY3E close. Thews sequnbes aig valped using guales chitaned from a
quotation reporting system, establshed market makess of pricing services
Financeal dervatnoes wsing these waluation adpustments are categorized as
Level 2 of the far walue begrandhy

Equity exchange-traded opbons and over the counter Bnancial dervatrve

irstruments, such as forwaed foreign cumenoy condrads and oplions. contrads,

e their value Tram wndderhang asset phoss, endies, redprence fanes, and
ather inputs of a combinabion of these facioes. These contracts ane normally
valued oo the basis of quates obtaned Trom a guotation repating system,
edtablshed market makers or Pricing Senvices (nomally determined i of the
MYSE Close). Depending cn the peoduct and the terms of the tramactan
financial derirative instruments. can be valued by Pricng Sendices using a
etie ol techmiques, indiudeng smulation prcing models The prcng models
wse inputs that see obiered from actrvely quated maskets such a5 quoted
puines, ssuer details, indices, bid'ask spraads, interest rates, implied
volatdities, yield ames, dividends and exchange rates. Financial dervatiee
untruments that we aimilar valuation Sechriguais and inputs & desenbed
abive aee categonzed as Level 2 of the fair value hieraschy

Centrally clearad swaps and over the counber swaps derive their value from
uniderhying aiset pioed, indices, relerenc rates, and alfer INPULE o a
combination of these facors. They are valued using a broker-dealer bid
quokation or cn market-based pnces provided by Pricing Senvices (nomally
determaned o5 of the NYSE Clodsh Cernral b cheated fwapd and over the
courter ywaps can be valued by Prcing Services wsang a senes of techniques,
including ssmulation pricing madels. The pricing models may wse inputs that
ate observed from actvely quoted markets such a5 the overnight index swap
rabe (" 065", LIBOR forward rate, inberest rates, yield cunves and credic
spreads These senurities are categoiized a5 Leved 2 of the far value hietarchy

Witien a Eair valuation method is applied by the Managir that uses sagfbicant
unobsercable inputs, evestmients will be priced by a method that

tha Manager or pedsons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value and
ane categonzed as Level 3 of the fair value hierardhy

Pecey pricing prooedures s61 the base prce of o fixed EHOME ity and
subsequently adjust the price proportionally to marked vabue changes of a pee
detemened security deemed to be comparable in duration, generaly a L5
Treasury o sovereign rote based on country of issuance. The base pice may
bee & broker -dealer quote. transaction price, of & internal value & derved by
analysis of market data. The base price of the security may be reset ona
peniodic Basis baded on the .:r.'.1||.:|‘.;||||l:,- of market daa and proceduns
approved by the Valuation Oversight Comerittes Sigrafcant changes on the
unobserrable inputs of the prooty pridng process: (the base price) would resull
in direct and propartional thanges in the fair value of the secunty These
securities ae categoried as Level 3 of the e value heeraochy

H thed-party evaluated vendor pricing is not avallable ar pot deemed 1o be
indizateee af $aic value, the Manager may ehect to oblain Baoker
Quanes directly from the beoker-tealer o passed-through Broker Quote from
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a third-party vendor . In the event that Tair value is based gpon a sigle
spueced Broker Quate, these securites ace catigoned a5 Level 3 of the lair
walie hieranchy. Braker Quates are typically recessed from established market
participants. Although mdependently received, the Manager does not have
the transpangngy to view the ||njn'h-1nf_| mpans which suppon the market
quedatcn Significant changes in the Broker Quote weould have diect and
proportional changes in the fair value of the security

Shon-term debt instruments (fuch 3 comeneroal dpt] hamang a remaining
mabunty of 60 days of less enay be valued at amonized oost, 56 long &3 the
amarted oost wafse of swch short-term: debt instruments is approximately the
same & the Fai value of the instument as determined without the use of
amortged oo waisplion Thise sxcunties ang cateqonded as Lol 7 of Linael
3 of the {air value hierazchy depending on the source of the base pnce

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

|a] Delayed Dalivery Transactions Ceman Funds may purchase oo sell
seonities on a delayed-delyery basis. These transactons imoke a
gommitmend by a Fund to purchase oo sell sacurities for a predeterminad price
o yekd, with paymend and dﬁm‘r,-wkuu] place beypond the ousloenany
settlement peniod When delined-delevery ransactions. are utstandng,

& Fund will designate or recenve a5 collateral bgued assets in an amount
suflicient 1o meet the purchase price or respective obligations When
purchasing a secunity on & delaped-delivery bass, a Fund assumes the nights
and risks of ownerihip of the secunty, indiuding the fisk of pice and yeld
Meciuations, and takes such fluctuations inte acoount when detemanng ils
NAY. A Fund may depose of of tenegetiate a delayed-delveny transaction
after it is entered into, which may result in a realized gain or loss. When

a Fund hars sold @ secunty on a delayed-defvery basis, the Fund does nat
particpate in future gains and hosses with respect to the security

(b} Inflation-budeed Bands Covtan Funds may st in inflasion-indensd
bords Inflation-indexed bands ace foed income secuntes whose principal
waloe i periodically adjusted by the rate of inflation The eterest rate on
these onds is generally foed 3t issuance at & rate kower than typical bonds
Ot thee Ie of an inllasion-indexed bond, however, intedess will b-rpad
based an a principal value, which is adgusted for mflabon. Ay increase o
decrease in the princpal amount of an inflason-indexed bond wal be incduded
a4 innedest o on the Stamements of Dperabions, ewen though mmestons do
nid recere their prircpal untd maturity. Repayment of the angiral Bond
privicpal upon maturity (35 adpusted for inllabicn] is quatantesd in the case of
U5 TIFs Fed bonds that 9 not provide 3 somiar quarantes, the adjusied
prncipal walise of the bond repaid a0 matunity may be bess than cthe ongng
principal

Ie] Lean Participations. Assignments and Oviginations "ertain Funds may
et in diresct debt instnuments wiich ane intbenests in amounds owed o
lendess o lerading synchcates by cotpesate, governmental, or ather boemowens
A Fund's envestments an loans may be in the farm: of participations in loans o
assigrements of all or a portion of Ioaes from thind parties or imvestments in of
onginations of laans by the Fund A boan is often administered by a bank or
other Enandal institution (the “lender”} that acts as agent for all holders. The
agent administers the terms of the loan, as spedilied in the loan ageement

A Fund may imeest in muhiple senes or franches of 2 loan, whach may have
waning terms and camry different assooated rcks. When a Fund purchases
assigrmenits from benders i§ aogaires direct rights against the borowerns ol the
loans. Thisse baans may indude pariopations in bindige oars, which ang loss
taken out by bonowers fiar a short period (ypically les than one year)
pending arangement of more permanent finandng through, for example, the
nsuance af bonds, Trequenitly high yield bonds issued for the puspose of
BOUSTIOnS.

Thee typess af loars and related mvestments in which the Funds may imnest
nclude, among ofthers, seniod and, dbonrdndted leand {incudng second
o loar, B-Mates and mezzaning kaans), whole laans, commercial seal
estate and other commercial lans and structured Yoans. A Fund may
anginate laans o aoquate dinect injenests in loars theough primany loan
destrbuticons andion in private bansactiors In the case of subordinated loans,
there may be significant indebtedness ranking ahead of the borower's
abiligation 10 the holder of such a loan, includ fig in the enent of 1he
B ewer's insoheery. Mezzaning laans are typecally seouted by a pledge of
an equity interest in the mortgage borrowwer that owns the real estate rathes
than an inberest noa mor Tgage

Ieveeritrnints in bodans may include unfunded boan commimments, which ane
contractual cbligations Bor funding. Unfunded loan commitments may include
revoiving credit facilibes, which may obligate a Fund 1o supply additional cash
10 the beereraer on demand Urdunded boan commitments regresent a future
ohligation in full, even thaugh a percentage of the commitied amount may
nat be utilized by the bormwer. When imeesting in a baan partiopation,

& Food hag the faght 10 recein: paymients af principssl, mtengst and sy fiess 10
whach it == entithed anly from the lender selfing the lazn agreement and only
upon receipt al payments by the lender trom the bomower. A Fund may
receive a commitment fee based on the wndravm parion of the underbying
fieee of ceedit poron of a loan. In cenain anrcumstances, a Fund may recene a
penaity lee upon the prepayment of a loan by a bomower. Fees eamed of
paed are ceconded a5 & component of inbetest mcome o interest Exense,
tespectiely, an the Slatements of Operaborn. Unfunded loan comeatments
ame reflected a5 a lisbefity on the Statements of Assets and Leabditees

{40 Mortgage- Ralated and Other Asset-Backed Securitios Cectan Funds may
irwest in morbgage-related and cther asset-backed secunties that directhy o
mdsrectly represent a partiopation in, of are secured by and payable fram
fouans on real property. Morigage-related securities are created from pools of
mesidential of commercial mongage lars, including morgage loans made by
sarandgd and loan imdtitunons, morigege bankers, commsstoal bankd and
others These sequrities provide a monthly payment which consists of both
irleresd and prindipal. Interest may be determined by fced or adjustable rates
The tate of prepayments on undedying mestgages wel affedt the price and
yolablity of a mortgage-refated seouty, and may have the efled of
shartening or extending the efiecive duration of the security ielative 1o what
s anticpated ab the time of purchase. The timely payment of prinapal and
intenest of cemain morgage-related secuites & quarasieed waith the ful Tath
and credit of the U 5. Government Poels created and guaantesd by mon-
geernmental ssuers, including government-sponsaned torporations, may be
spported by vanows Torms of insurance of quacantess, but there can be na
assurance that paivate insureds of quarantors can meet their obligations under
the insizance palicies or quarantee arangements. Many of the risks of
Ieviesing i morgage-related seourities secuned by commercial mangage
Toares refiect the effects of local and cther economic conditions on real estate
markets, the abiity of tenants to make lease payments, and the ability of a
progerty 1o amract and tetdn tenants. These secuntees miy be bek bguid and
may exhibut geeater price volanling than other types of marigage-related or
oiher asset-backed securities. Other asset-backed secunties are created from
many types of assets, inchuding, bt ot limited 16, auln kaans, accounts
recefvable, such as cedi catd recetvablies and hospital account recervables,
home equity loans, student loars, boat loans, mobile home Joans,
recreationgl vebucle loans, manlaciured howsng boans, areralt begdas,
compuier leates and syndicated bank loans The Fund may imeest in amy level
ol the capstal structure of an ssuer of merigage-badied or asset-backed
securities, inchuding the eguity or “lirst loss ™ trandhe

{nh Collateralized Mortgege Obligatiens (" CNDS" | are debit cbligabens ol a
Il éntity tha ane collierakied by whiolé mamgage loam of pinedle
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morigage bonds and drvded it classes. CMOs ane struchared into multiple
chinses, alven refermed 1o &% “ranchis”, with each dass beanng a diffesent
stated maturity and entitled 1o a different schedule far payments of prinopal
and interest, inchuding prepayments. CMIDs may be less liquid and may exhibit
greater price valability than other types of mortgage-related or asset-backed
sarurities

Ifl Sirippad Mortgage Backed Sacuritins [*SMES™ ) are denvatne muln-class
mirtgage secunties. SMBS are usually stnachwred with two dasses that recene
different proportions of the mterest and princpat distributions on a pool o
mertgage dsets An SMES wall have one class that wall recene all of the
interest {ife intenest-only of "I0" diass), while the ather dass wall recesse the
entire principal {the principal-cnly o PO dass). Payments recerved for 10s
ard included R s e on The Statementd of Cpecanond, Becalse no
prancipal will be recerved at the magunty of an 10, adjusterents ate made 1o
the cnst of the security on a monthly basss untd maturity. These adjustments
are included in in%erest incomd on the Statements of Operatices. Payments
received fior PO ane treated as reductions 1o the ost and par value of the
senrities

Ig) Coltataralired Debt Obligations | C00:") nclude Collateraloed Bond
Dbdigations ("CBOs™), Collateralized Loan Obbgatiors {7 CLOs") and other
similay structured securties. CBOs and (L0 ane types of asset-backed
securities. A CBO i a trust which is backed by a diversified paol of high risk,
below imvestment grade fiwed income securites & CLO is a trust typically
cotlateal@ed by a pocd of lgans, which midry include, among others, domelic
and Boreign senior secuned faans, senior unsecured fnans, and subordinate
corporate loans, induding loans that may be rated below imestment grade o
equivaient unrated loans. The reks of an evestment in 3 CDO depend Laigely
on the type of the collateral securities and the dass of the CDO inwhich

a Fund irveests In addition ko the normal risks assocated weth fioaed income
securities discussed elsewhere in this report and the Funds™ Offering
Mesnarandum (eq, prepayment ik, eredd nsk, lgodity rick, markes mik,
structural nisk, legal eisk and interest rate risk (which may be exacerbated if
the imtenest rate payable on a sinchured fnancing changes based on
multpies al changes i irdi ries of imeesely 50 chunges in infevist
ranesl), CHOs, CL0w, and other COOs camy additional rigks induding, but net
limited ta, (i} the possibility that distrbutions from cofl ateral seourities will not
be adequate ba make mberest or cther payments, (1) the guakty of the
collatesal may dechne in value or defaul, (in) the risk that a Fund may imest
in CAOs, CLOs, or other C00s that are suboedinate to other dasses, and ()
the comples structure ol the secoeity may nat e Tully understood at the tme
of veestment nd may produce dsputes with the Bauer of unepected
imvestment resalts

[l Paysseat bn-Kind Secuditien Certain Funds may invest in payment in-tind
securities (T PIKs™ ). PIEs may gree the ssver the option 3% each inferest
Py date o saking intetest payments in dither cagh andios sdditional
debt securities. Those addibonal debt seouritses usially huree the tame terms,
including matunty dates and interest rates, and assooated nsks as the
gnginal bonds The daily market quotations of the aaginal bonds may indudie
the accrued inberest {refermed 1o a5 4 "dirty praoe” ) and require a pro rata
adjustment from the unrealzed apprecation or depreciation on imestments
t interest recervable on the Statements of Assats and Liakbalites

[l Restricted Securitier Cevtan Funds may hold investments that are subgedt
to begal or contractual restrichiond on resale. Thise securities may be sold
prevately, but may be required 1o be registered or exemptad from such
regrstration before being sold to the public. Private placement seaunbies ase
gqenerally cormadered ta be restncted. Disposal of testiicied imvesiments may
imvolve BEme-comsuming regotiations and expenses, and prampd sale at an
acceplable price may be difficult to achieve Riestricted investments. beld by

tha Funds at Qctobier 31, 2021, as appficable, are dsdosed in the Notes 1o
Schidule of brrestments

0 Stractured Notes Certain Fumds may invest in structured nedes and ather
related instruments, which are prevately negobated debt abligations in which
the principal ared! of interest i determened by reference 10 the perloemance of
a benchmark assey, marked or interest rate (an " embedded ndex”), such &
sehecied securnities, an index of secuntes o specihied interest rates, of the
diffierential perlormance of two assets of markets, such a5 indixes reflecting
baonds. Struchared instruments may be issued by conporations, induding
banks, as well as by governmental agences. The ters of such structured
irstruments normally provide that their prncpal andfor infesest payments are
1 b acusted uprwards o dowmwands (hut ordinanly mat below pers) to
teflect changes in the embedded index while the struchured instnemenis ate
outstanding As a result, the interest andior paintipal payments that may be
made on a structured preduct say vany wadely. depending on a varety of
factors, induding the volablity of the embedded index and the effoct of
changes in the embedded index on prancipal andfor inernest payments

&) U5, Gavernmant Agenties or Government-Speatarad Entarprises
Certain Funds may irvest in secusitied of U S Government agendies o
gawernment-sponsored enterpreses. LS. Government sequrities are
ahligatiors of and, in cectain cases, guaranteed by, the U 5. Goverment, its
agencies of instumentaiies. Some U S, Geverrenent seountes, sudh as
Teeasury bills, rotes and bonds, and secunities quaranteed by the Government
Naticnal Mertgage Assoaation ("GNMA” or “Ginnie Mae™), se supported
Loy the Tidl fath and credha of the U S Goeirenent others, soch a5 thods of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supparied by the right of the issuer to
bomow from the U.S. Department of the Treasury (the “U 5. Treasiry™k and
athers, juch ag those of the Federal Natianal I\.l"cr.qg.ql_' Assoaahon | FNMA®
of "“Farmie Mae™), are supparted by the discetonary authority of the LS
Govemment to purchase the agency's chligations. U'S. Goversment securities
iy indude 2600 Coupan secuibes, wisch do nol datnbute injenest on g
curtent basis and tend 1o be subject 1o a greater rek than intenest-paying
securities of simdar maturitses

Govenment-telated guarantors (i e, ot backed by the Bl Laith ad cedit of
the U 5 Govemment) incude FRA, and the Federal Home Loan Mongage
Cewpoeation {"FHLMC™ or *Freddie Mac™). FMA 5 a govemment-sponsored
corporation. FNMA purchades comventional {1.e, nat insuned or guaranteed by
Aty goveerrenent agency) restdential momgages froem a list of appeoved
sellarsfsanvicers which include state and federally chanered sxings and loan
assocabons, mulsl srangs banks, commercial banks and credit unions and
mgiigage bankers. Pas-through seduntsss sisued by FRIMA are quaranbesd o5
1o timely payment of prncipal and inerest by FMA, but are not backed by
the full faith and credit of the U.5. Gowernment. FHLME rsues Particpation
Cartificates ("PCs™), which are pass-thicugh securities, each representing an
undiided interest in a pool of residental mongages. FHLMC guatantees the
timely payment of intevest and ultimate cofection of principal, but PCs are not
bascked by the full faith and coedit of the 1% Governmeent

I bune 2079, FNALA and FHLMC started isguing Uniform Mestgage Baded
Securitses {TUMBS" } in place of their curent olferings of TRA-shighde
secunties {the 'Smgle kturnr,".ﬁﬂlalwr'b ﬂwi:ngeﬁcm'lt:,- Initiatme seeks
1o support the overall bguidity of the TRA market and aligns the
characteristics of FNMA and FHLMC cemficates The effects that the Single
Security Initiative may have on the market for TRA and other mortgage-
backed seouites ae undertan

Redl-timing sirategies can be used where a Fund seeks to extend the
expitation or matunity of a posttion, such a5 a TRA security on an underlying
assel, by chofang ouf thee positon l:r'l'l:rl'mr.lmlll;.". and ppening & nisw
peorsition wath respect to substantally the same wnderhing Fsset with & lacer
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expiration date. TEA securities purchased or sold are reflected on the
Statements of Azsets and Liailities a5 an asset or Gablity, respectrely

Ml When-lssued Transactioas Certain Funds may purchase or sell sequrities
o & whirrisiued basis. Thise tratiacsans ate made condiionally becise &
spcurity, alibough authorized, has nat et been dsued in the markeq
Trarsactions to purchase ca sell sequrities on a when-sssued basis mvolve

a commitrent by 3 Fund ta purchase or sell these seamties ke a
predesemingd price of yild, with payment snd delrery taking place beyond
the customary settlement pedicd A Fund may sell when-issusd sequrities
before they are delivered, which may result in a realized gain or loss

Im] Bank Dbligations Bank ciligations in which a Fund may imvest mcude
certificates of depost, bankers’ acceptances, and foed time depodits
Centificates of deposit e negotiable cetificates msued against funds
depesited in a commercial bank for a definfte period of time and earning a
-.pm;l.‘ o return. Bankery acceplances ane I‘!Q‘]A;\Ihtl!{' drafts or bals ol
exchange, romally drawn by an importer or exporier bo pay Tor specfic
merchandise, which are "accepted” by a bank, meaning, in effect, that the
bank unconditionally agrees 1o pay the face value of 18 irtrument on
matutiey Fived time depesies are bank obligations payable a1 a stated
matunty date and bearing interest at a fmed rate: Fived time depotits may be
wathekimn on demand by the srvestar, But mir be subijed 16 ealy

wathd vl penaliies which vary depending upon market condtions nd the
remaining maburity of 1he obligation

|n} Pas{armance-Linked Mates Certan Funds invest in perfoemance|inked
noaes that aci ssued by Credit Suisse Inbédnational (the ™ Fee Agent”) and
spek 1o track the pedamande of the FIMOO Bermuda Incoeme Fund (M)

{" Peaformance-Linked Motes™) In the case of the IPY Perlormance-Linked
Nortes isswed, the perfcemance al such notes will be hedged 1o the lapanese
win by Crsdit Sumse [nbemabdnal uiing dplw:li‘l.r_.".m-'luh A egplined sh
greater detadl in Note 9, the Fee Agent will finance the payment of platement
feas bo certain Japarese detnbatoss. In onder for the Fee Agemt to hedge
certain of s epoduates under the Fee Agent Appasilment Aqreement [
defined in Mote 9}, i is expected that from time to ime certain Classes of the
PINGCD) Bermunda ncome Fumnd E wall invest in Performance-Linked Nedes in an
A ',p-w-hcd Iy the Fow Agent. A1 the temi af et rcluding, But mat
limited o, ary redemption of units of the PMCO Barmuda Income Fund E
amd a step-tdown of the applicable Percentage Contingent Deferred Sales
Charge {"C0SC"), o defined in Note 9. the Perdormance-Linked Nates held
by the Fund will be parially redeemed acoondingly in arder to mamain the
total vatue of Perormance-Linked Motes in the Fund's investment portiolio
equal b o below the amount of the COSC applicable ta th tespective
Classes of the Fund plus 0 20% muloplied by the AW of the respecve
Classes of the Fund Perdomance-Linked Motes are valued daly Thes value 5
based on the pnor day WAY of the PIMCD Bermuda Income Fund (M) Wi
nespt o the vl of the I8 Performance-Linked Mates, a progpnetan
hedging jormula is also appled The Fund cannot transfer the Perfoemance:
Linked Mobes to any other party aside from the Fee Agent without the prior
waitien agreement af the Fee Agem

5. BORROWINGS AND DTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The Tellgwang o sclosures conlain indpimation on the Funds ability 1o bend o
borrow cash o securites 1o the extent pesmitied under the Ofering
Memorandum, which may be viewed as boerowing or finanong transactions
by the Funds. The location of these instruments 15 described below. For a
detaded detcnption of credit and counterpaety sk that can be Fssocaied
wath bowmawings and ather financing ransactons, please see Nate 7,
Prancipal and Oitheer Risis

fa) Repurchass Agresments Certain Funds may engage in reputchase
agreements. Linder the terms of a typical repurdhase agreement,

a Fand purchades an underlying debt cbqation (collateral) subject to an
ohligation of the seller to reputchase, and a Fund 1o resall, the abligation at
an agreed-upon prce and time In an cpen matunty repunchase agreement,
thene is no pre-determmed repurchase date and the agreement can be
terunated by the Fund or coustematy at any time. The market valioe of the
collateral must be equal to or exceed the tatal amount of the repuichase
ohligatiors, induding interest Repurchase agreaments, induding accrued
imenest, are included on the Statemenas of Assets and Liabiities. Ingenest
earned is tecorded a5 a companent of inberest imceme on the Statements of
Cperations. bn periods of increased demand for collateral, a Fund maypay a
i fior receapl of eollateral which may hesull 10 ingenest expendat o the Fund

) Roverss Reporchase Agresmsats Cerian Funds may enter info reverse
tepurchase sjpteements In a reverse iepurchane sgreement, a Fund delners a
sequnity in exchange for cash to a finanaal instibution, the countesparty, wath
a simultaneous agreement 1o repurchase the same or substanbially the same
SECUnTy M an et upon pnoe and dase In Jn oDen MUy tEosrhe
tepurchase agreement, there 15 no pee-deteimaned repurchase date and the
agreement £an be lerminated by the Fund or counderpanty at any tme

& Fund 15 entrled bo receive principal and intesest paymens, f amy, madi on
the secunity delvened 1o the countesparty duning the term of the agreement
Cah recenved in exchange for securities deliversd phus acoued inferest
pymints 0o be made t‘g & Fund $o counbecpartiog e reflocied 25 2 Inablity
on the S1atements of Assets and Liabilties. Imerest paymnents made by a Fund
iz counterparties are recorded & 3 component of inerest expense on the
Staterments of Operations In periods of increarsed demand for the security,

& Fund miry recene & Tee Tor e of the secunty by the counterpary, which
may result in irterest income toa Fund A Fund will segregate assets
detemmaned 1o be bgued by PIMCO or will cthenwise oover i chiigations
undder tiverse repurchace agreements

fed Saln-Buybacks Crertain Funds may enter inta financing transactaom
refierted o as "sale-buybacks’. A sale-buyback financing ransaction consists
of a sate of @ securnity by a Fund to a finandial insttution, the counteipaty,
with 3 smiiansdus agreement 10 repurchae the sime of substantially the
same security t an agreed-upon price and date. & Fund is rat entrtled 1o
eecefve prinapal and interest payments, i any, made on the security sold ta
the counterparty during the teim of the agreement The agreed-upon
preoetd fod securitied 1o be repurchased by 2 Fund e reflecied a5 2 lakelity
on the Satemsents of Assets and Liabilities. A Fund will recognize net inoome
represented by the price differential betwoen the price receved for the
traffened swcunty and the agresd-upon repurchase prce This i commanly
eeferred to as the 'price drop’. & price diop corsists of (i) the laregone inerest
and inflationary income adprstments, @ any, a Fund would have otherwise
el had the secunty nat bien sold and (i} the negotited ﬁrwr:mq e
Esetvonen & Fund amd cousterpaty. Foregone intetest and inflationary incoene
adjustments, if any, are recorded as components of interest income on the
Satements of Operations. Interest payments baded upon negotiated finanang
terms made by a Fund to counterparties ane recoeded a5 a companent af
imerest expense on the Statements of Operatons. [n peviods. of inoeased
demand for the security, a Fund may receive a fee for use of 1he security by
the countesparty, whath may <ol in interest meome 1o 4 Fund A Fund all
segreqate assets determined 1o be bgud by PIMCO or will othenwse cover its
obibgaticrs under sale-buyback trarsachions

) Sheet Salex Certan Funds may enter into short sales transactions. Short
ok i ardactond i which the Fund $eili 2 Secumty that it may not own
A Fund may make short sales of seountaes 1o (i) offset potential dechnes in

loeng porsitions. in similar seouritees, (i) to inrease the Bewlility of the Fund

{ik) for imvestment retum, (vl as part of a risk arbitrage strateqy, and i) as
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part of its oweral [\lﬂl'.rl;\lll;i management $trategies |r‘.~q|h|m'_, the e al
dermaive Enslruments. When a Fund engages in 8 short sale, it may botow
the security sokd shaet and delrer it to the counteipaity, The Fund will
ordinanly hawe to pay a fee or premium to bomow a seawity and be obligated
ta repay the lender of the security amy dividend or interest that accrues on the
sacurity during the pezicd of the loan. Securities sold in sheet sale rantactons
and the dividend ar interest payable on such secwities, if any, are reflected as
pryabie lor shom sales on the Staterments of Asiets and Liabikties. Shor sales
expode the Fund 10 the risk that it will be requined 1o cover its short pasition
at a time when the security ar other asset has apprecated in value, thas
resiting in losses to he Fund A short sabe 15 " aganst the boa” if

the Furd holds in s portfelio o ke the right 10 soquire the securnty seld
shost, or securities identical 1o the seourity scld short, at no additicnal cost

A Fund will be sbgect to additional nsks to the exient that it engages in shoet
sales that e not " agsndt the box ™ A Fund's loss on a shom sale could
theceetically be unlimited mn cases wheee the Fund is unable, for whatever
reason, to dhose out its shart positon

{#] Lime of Credit FINCO Bemoda Bank Loan Fund (M) entesed inso a 364
day sensor unsecured revobing cred? agreement with the Bank of Tolyo-
Mirtsubigia UF), Lid {"MUFG"] and othés commeroal banks 1o be utlized for
tempaorany purpeses to fund Unithalder redemgitions of Tor sther shor-berm
liquidity purposes. MUFG serves a5 both a bank and a5 an agent for ather
banks that ane paties 10 the agreement. AMOD Barmypda Bank Loan Fund
(M) pays Fenancing charges based on a combination of LIBOR-based variable
plus a credit spread. The Fund also pays a Tee of 0 275% per annum on the
unigied commament amounts. The sreement wad rendwed an August 21,
2021 and expires on Ausgust 21, 2022 unless exterdad of renewed. There s a
maxemum aealable commitment amount for PIMIO Bermuda Bank Loan
Fund (4 equal to 45 000,000, Prigd 1o .ﬁ.l.;..'_|u:.|: 21, 2031, the maxesium
avalable commitrmeen amount for the Fund wars $55,000,000 and the Fund
paid a fee of 0 275% per annum on the unused comemitment amounis.
Commitment, uplront and interest fees of 536,435 paxd by PIMCD Bermuda
Bank Loan Fued (M} e included s entens spense in the Stanemeniy of
Operatices

Dunrg the penod, there were no bdmawangs on 1his hne o eredit

B. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fellewing desclosures canain infsrmation on how and whry the Funds e
financial desivative instruments and how financial decvative instruments.
aflect the Funds” financial pasition, results of operationd #nd cash Tlows. The
locaton and Tar value amognts of thise instruments on tThe Statements of
Mssets and Liabilities and the nef realized gain (loss) and net change i
unrealzed appreciation (depreciation) on the Statements of Opevations, sach
careganged by type of financial dervative contract and related risk expoture,
are imcluded ina table in the Notes to Schedule of Imestments. The financial
derivative instruments cutstanding as of peniod end and the amounts of net
realined gann {losd) andl red change in uregalzed appregation fdepreciation)
on financial dersvative instruments duing the pernad, as declosed in the
Nodes b0 Schedde of Imvestments, serve a5 indicators of the vohame of
fingeecial dervative actiily Har the Funds

|s] Farveard Foreign Currency Contraets Certain Funds may engage in
feewand I'l:n-:u;‘l CITendy COnlEacts in cannecton wath Setthng pla"mr\-;]
purchases or safes ol sevuntes, to hedge the curtency expasure Fssodated
wath some or all of a Fund's securities or a5 part of an investment strategy. A
forward foneign currency conleack is an ageoement between two partes 1o buy
and sell & currency at a set price on a future date. The market value of 3
Terwand foreign cusrency contract fluctuabes wath changes in foneign currency
exchange rates. Foreard foveign cumency contracts are marked to market

daty. and the change in value = recofded by a Fund a5 an unnealized gain of
fos. Peafized quns o losses ate equal 1o the difference between the value of
the contract at the tene it was opened and the value a1 the time i was dosed
and are recorded upan deliveny or receipt of the curency. These contracts
ity imegrhe man ket risk in ewoess of the uorealzed gain of less refiected on
the Statements of Assets and Lishdities In addition. a Fund could be exposed
1o risk if the counterparties are umable to meet the terms of the contracts or if
the value of the ourency changes wavarably 1o the functanal currency, To
mmitigate such tisk, cash or sequnties may be exchanged a2 collaberal pursuant
1o the terms of the underhying contracts

Certain Funds, having a hedged Clads, may atso enter inba Torward tonsign
cuitency coriracts designisd 1o offset the effect of hedepng at the Fund leved n
ordiar to leave the hedged Class with an exposure 1o currencies other than the
functional curency. There can be no guarantee that these (s speahc
Torevaed Sorelgn curency contracts will be saocessiul

) Futures Contrats Certain Funds may emtes info fuliees contracts A
futures contract is an agreement o buy or sell a security or other asseq for a
se1 price on 3 future date and 1% traded on an exchange. A Fund may we
Tutunes conbiacts 1o Mansge its expasune 10 the secunites markets of 1o
mirements in inerest rates and cuntency values The primary risks associated
with the use of futures contracts ase the imperfect comelation between the
change in markiet walue of the securities held by & Fund and the prices of
futures contracts and the possibility of am lliquid market Futunes contracts
ate valoed based upon their quoted daly setifersent prices, Upan entering
ity  futunes contracy, 2 Fund it reguared 1o depost with its fotures broker an
amouny of cash, U5 Gowernment aed Agency Oblgations, or seleq soveregn
debit, in acoordance with the initial margin requrements of the broker or
euchange Futures comiracts ane matked to market daily and hased on such
miermenis in the price of the contracs, an appropriate payable or recevable
{or the change invalue may be posted or collected by the Fund [ Futsres
‘ariation Margin™ ) Futures Yariation Maegins, & any, are dischiosed within
cenirally deanid financsl derrsatre instiuments on the Sarements of A
and Liabdlites. Gains of losses are recogrized but not consadered reafized unbl
tha contracts expire or dose. Fulures condracts involve, 10 vansing degrees,
risk of bass in exnzess of the Futures Vatiation Masgin inchaded wathin
exchange traded or centrally deared financial dervatie instruments on the
Statemenits of Assets and Liabikties

le} Optiona Contraets Certain Funds may wnte o purchase options to
erhance relurns of 1o hiddge an eaisling positen or {utune irvestmednt Cemam
Furnds may weite call 2nd pus options on securites and financal detratie
irstruments they own or in which they may invest. Wiiting put options tends
12 increase a Fund's expasune 1o the underkang instrament. Writing call
apticms tends to decrease a Fund's exposure to the undethying snstrument
When a Fund wiites a cafl o put, an amount equal to the premium received is
recoeded and subsequently matked to marke] oo tefiecy the current value of
the pption weriten. These amounts aie induded on the Statements of Asets
and Leabalithes. Premiumss reveseed from wiiting options which axpine are
treated a3 realeed gains. Premiures recerved from waiting options which are
exeicrbed or closed are addied to the procesds o offset agarnt amounts paid
an the underying futunes, swap, seounty of curenty transacton to determine
the reafed gain or loss. Certain options may be written wath premiums 1o be
deteimaned on & futee date The premaums o chise optians are based upan
imphied velatidity parameters at specilied terms A Fund as a weiter of an
opticen has no control over whether the underying nstrument may be sold
§"cal "} or purchassd {"put”™) and a5 a nest biears the market risk of an
unlavoratle change in the prece of the instnament underhying the wiitten
opticn There is the risk a Fund may not be able to enter into a daosing
tramsactan because of an digud market
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Cevtain Funds may abio purchase put and call cptioss. Purchasing <all options
verds 10 inkniine & Fund's exposune Do the undeihing sstrument Funchaing
put opBons tends o decrease a Fund's exposure g the underdnng instiument
A Fund pays @ premium which is induded as an asset on the Statements of
Assets and Liobilies and sabsequensly marked 1o market 10 neflect the
current vabue of the option. Premiums paid Tor punchaciesy optons which
expive are treated as realized bosses. Certain options may be purchased wath
premiunms b0 be determined on a fure date. The premiums Tor these optocs
are based upen implied volatiey paramebers. & specified tems. The ek
assooated with purchasing put and call options is limited bo the premium
paid. Premiums paid for puschasing eptions which e exesosed or dased ane
added 10 the ameurts pad or alfeet againgt the procesds on the uedeiing
imvestment transaction to desermine the realized gain or foss when the
ungerlying transaction is executed

Cowdit Dultault Swaptions Certasn Funch may weibe o purchase cnedss defaut
i lofes. b hedage expasure 1o the credit ik of an imeeiment withioul
making a commitment 1o the underlying instrument. & credit default swaption
is an ophion to sell or buy redit protection 1o a spedihc mlerence by entering
niba d prie-debned S aghesrment by some ';pve\'ﬂrd dane ah 1k lihaie

Foreign Curremey Options Certan Funds may wiite af puichase forean
furrendy options 1o be used as a short of long hedge against possble
variatices; in foreign exchange rates o to Gain exposere 1o forsgn owrencies

Inflation-Capped Optione Certain Funds may wiite or purchase inflation-
Capped opibang 1o enhande hebuind or o hedging cpportumitats. The pupose
of purchasing indlation-capped opbices is 1 protect a Fund from infation
eicsion above a certain rate on & given notional exposure. A floor can be
usid 30 gove downiide protection 19 imvestmens in nllatoa-linked products

Imtnrmst Rate Swaptiens Ciitain Funds may wnte of purchase inbeeest tate
swiap laans which are oplions 1o enter inte a pre-defined swap agreement o
bo sherten, extend, caccel or athersse modify an exsting swap sgreement,
by some specihed date in the Rubure. The wiiter of the swaption becomes the
counterparty 10 the swap if the buyer exercises The imterest rate swapton
agreement will specify whether the buyer of the swaption wall be a fixed-rate
recener of 3 feed-tate payer upon exendse

Dptions sn Exchange Traded Futures Contracts Cotan Funds may wile o
purchase optiors on exchange-traded futuses contracts {"Futures Option”) to
hedge an existing positon or futune investment, for speculative pumoses or fo
manage expoiure b market mevements. A Futures Option is an opbon
comiract im which the underkang instrament is a single frtures contract

Dptions sn Securities Certain Funds may weite of purchade apboss on
securities &0 enhanoe returrs of to hedge an esting position or fuae
imvestment An option on & secunity uses 2 spedified seounity as the underhying
instiument fat the optan cantract

[l Swinp Agresmswts Certan Funds may erest in swap agreements Swap
agreements ane bilaterally negobated agreements between a Fund and a
CountEpaty i ['Joqh.]n.]-:-l:t Dwap icvestment cash ficrass, assots, I'n:cm]n
cusrenoses or market-linked requrns at specified, futwe intervals Swap
agreaments may be provately negotited in the OTC market or may be deared
thiroagh a thand paity, knoam a5 3 central counterparty or detivatioes Cleasing
organizatan | centrally deaned swaps”) A Fund may enter into asset, cedn
defaiult, cross-amency, mfenest rate, total return, vanance and other forms of
SWap agreements 1o manage its exposuee b cedil, curmency, inberest rate,
commodity, equity and inflatios fidk In conmection with thése dyreements,
securines of cash may be identifed 2 collateral or mangsn in accondance with
thee terms of the respective swap ageements to provide assets of value and
recaurss o the event of delfauh o hank ngiopinmohniny

Centrally cleared swaps are marked o market daily based upon valuatices as
derermened from the undedying contract of i scooidande with the
requiremsenis af the central counterparty of derrabves deareng rganizatsan
Changes in market value, if any, are reflected as a component of net change:
n unredlied appreciation [deprecation) an the Statements of Dperations
Duady changes in vahuation of centrally deared swiaps (™ Swap Vanaton
Margin®), if any, are dsclosad within centrally deared finandial devivative
wntruments on the Strements of Assers and Labilmes QTC S Pyt
recerved ar pand at the beginning of the measusement petiod ate induded on
the Statements of Assets and Lisbditees and represent premiuens paid o
eoeroed upon entenng mlo the swap agreement 1o compensate for
diffsrences betesnn the stated teime al the swap Spteement and prevailng
market conditions [credit spreads, oumency exchange rates, interest rates, and
ather refevant factors) Upfent premiums recerved (paid) are initialty recorded
& ligblinies (arsets) and subdequently matked to market bo reflecy the ourrent
value of the swap These upfromt premiums ase recorded s realzed gars or
hoessies. on the Statements of Operations upon termination or maturity of the
pwap. A liquidation payment recenned of made ot thee erminatich ol the WP
i recorded a5 realized gain o hess an the Statements of Oiperatians, Me
pevindic paymenss recesed o paid by a Fund ase incdluded as part of realized
gans of losses an the Statemants of Dperations

For pusposas of apphong certain of a Fund's imestment policies and
restrictions, swap agreements, libe other derrrative instruments, may be
vilued by a Fund a1 market valoe, notional value o Tl eposyee value En the
case of & coedi definult swap, in applyirg cenain of the Fund's imestment
palicies and restrictions, the Fund will value the redit default swap at its
notional value or its full exposure value {ie, the sum of the notional amount
o [he cantise Pl the marbet valuel but mdy valus the it delamlt L]
at market value for purpases of apphying certain of the Fund's other
rmestment palicies and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value credit
dedault vepps ae fidl EApaUE il fiet pﬁ_"pﬁ-in"i.ﬂf‘.hé Fund's enede |:|.'.J|E,l
quidekres {if any) becatss such value i general better reflects the Fund's
actual economac exposure during the term of the credit default swap
agredment. As a eetult, 3 Fund may. ot imed, have notional expasune 16 30
st clerss (befone pettieg) that & greater of lesser than the stated limit o
restriction neded in the Fund’s Offering Memorandum. n ths context, both
the notional amount and the market value may be posative or negatve
depending on whether the Furd m sellng or buying pretection thicugh the
creckt default swap. The manner in which certain secunites ar other
rrstruments ane valued by the Fund loe pupoie al m'\_rng imvesiment
policies and restrictons may differ from the manner in which these
ervestments ate valued by other types of mwvestods Entering inbo swap
agheements imvadves, 1 vaning degrees, elements of interest, credit, market
and documentation risk in exgess of the amounts recagnied on the
Statermenis of Assats and Liabiktes Sudh risks imvolve the posshbiley that
there will be no boguid market for these agreements, that the counterparty 1o
the agreements may default o s chdgation fo perform or disagree as to the
mieaning of contraciual 1eims in the agreements and that thene may ke
unfavorable changes in intenest rates oo the values of the asset upon which
Tha s i based

A Fund's maamum risk of boss from countespaty credit risk i the descowned
et value of the cash flows 1o be seceived from the counterparty over the
contract's remaining lile, 10 the extent that ameunt is pasitive: The risk may
ke mnitigated by hening & maste: netting aerangement between a Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collaterad to a Fund to cover a Fund's
exposure o the counferparty

To the extent a Fund had a pelicy 1o kma the net amount awed 10 or 10 b2
recened fram a dingle countespany under exasling Sedp agreements, such
lirmitation anly appfies to counterparties to OTC swaps and does nat apply to
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censrally cleared swaps where the counterparty 15 a central courdieiparty or
deirvatrees cheanng organd ation

Cowdit Dafuult Swap Agreemests Cestan Funds may enter inbo credt defact
Swaps on cofporate, baan, sovereign, US mummopal of U5 Treadury ssues to
provide a measure of protection aganst defaubis of the issuers {i e, o reduce
nisk where a Fund cons or has msposure 1o the referenced chligation] or to
Lace 3 pctioe Bandg Of shadt podiban wilh eedpect b the ikelhood ala
particuiar fssuer's defaull Cred default swap agreements ke ong party
making a stream of payments. (refemed to as the buyer of protection) to
andther party (hi felled of prabection) s {':.l:h.th{' fee the nght bo nidese a
specfaed rebum in the event that the referenced entty, obSgation or index, as
specified m the swap agreement, undergoes a certam edit event As a seller
of pretection on credit delault swap agreements, 3 Fund will generally recene
Team the busser of protection a fowed rate of income througheut the teem of the
swap peovided that these is ro credit event As the seller, a Fund would
effectroaty a3d leverage o s partlolio becase, in addition ta its otal net
asgets, the Fund would b subjisct 10 mestnient sxpodure on the notional
amount of the swap

I a Furnd i 3 seller of protection and a oedit event oours, 35 delined under
the tere of that particulas swap agreement, & Fund wall either (3] pay 1o the
buyer of protection an amount equal to the nobicnal amaunt of the swap and
take delivery of the referented cbligation, other debverable chligations o
underkang shcuntes compniing the relerenced i o {ub Eury & e
setlement anount in the form of cash of secuntes equal o the rotional
amount of the swap less the recovery vahue of the referenced chigation o
||m:cr.‘rmq secunties compeising the rederenced index If 3 Fund 15 a bunyer af
pratection and a credit event ooqurs, 2 deflined under the terms of that
partiodar swap agreement, a Fund wall either (1} recesve from the salier of
protechion an amount equal to the national amouny of the swap and dilnoer
the referenced cbhgation, other debverable cbligations of urderlying
sacurities compreing the referenced index or (i) receve a net settiement
ameunt in the form ol cash or securities equal 3o the netsonal amount of the
sl hess thee recovery vilue af the rederenced obligation or underhing
sacurities compresing the referenced indiex. Recovery valses are estimated by
market makers considering eitter industry standard recoveny rates of entity
speatic factors and considerations untd a <redit event oocurs If 3 cedil event
has acomred, the recovesy value is determined by a lacilnated suchen
wherelry a minimum number of dlowable broker bads, together with a
wl::l.‘rd'.r.lluu'.-:u method, &0 wied fo calculate the seltbement vadue. The
ability 1o delver sther abiligations may eesult i 2 cheapet-1o-delver apticn
[the buyer of protection’s right to choose the deliverable obligation with the
kst vadue following a credkt eventh

Credin default swap agreements on edit indoes srecive one party making a
stream of payments to another party in exchange for the right to receive a
spedfied rebum in the event of a write-down, primcipal shostfall, interest
shortdall or delault of 2l of pan of the referenced entities compriung the
credit indax. A credit index is a basket of credit instrumesnts of exposutes
designed 10 be representatee of some part of the credat market as 3 whole
Thesse indicess ane made up ol refenence credits that ane judiped bry & pe af
dealers 1o be the mest liquid entities in the oedit default swap market Based
on the sector of the index. Components of the indices may indude, but e
nof limited 8, mvesimen] grade secites, begh yeld seoutites, asser-backed
sacufities, emerging markets, andioe vanous aedit ratings wichin each sectos
Credit indices are traded using credi default swaps with standardized terms
inclading a fied spreaed and Sandand magunty dates. An index cridit delault
sweap relerences all the mames in the sdex, snd if there i a default, 1he cedit
event is setthed based on that name’s weight in the index: The composition of
the rdices changes penodically, usually every six menths, and for most
indices, each name has an equal weight in the ndex & Fund may use credit

delault swaps on credin indices 1o hedge 2 pontfolic of aredit default swaps or
bands, whech 14 less expensive than & would be 10 buy macy coedit default
waps b achieve a similar eflect Credit default swaps on mdices are
instruments for protecting investors cwring bonds against default, and
traders e them 10 speculabe on changes in credit quality

fmphied credht spseads, represened in absolute terms, wiilzed in detemereng
thee market value of oredit default swap agreements on (omorate, loan,
swovetesgn, U 5 municps o U 5 Trpasuny isswes a5 cfpt\'ll,u'.cn!_ i ary, ahe
desclosed im the Motes 1o Schedule of Imvestreents. They serve as an mdhcator
af the current statws of payment/periormance resk and repaesent the fkelbood
or risk of default for the relerenced entity. The impled credit spread of a
paiticular referenoed entity rellects the cost of buyingseling protecion and
may indude upfrant paymens required 1o be made to enter it the
agreement Wider credit spreads represent a deterioration of the relerenced
eritity's ceedit soundmeds and a greater ibelihood or nik of defauly or other
cred event gocuring as defined under the terms of the agreement For credit
delault swap agresments on asset-backed securties and credit indices, the
quobed maket proes and tisulting vidlues seoed o the indcator of the current
starus of the paymentiperdormance rek Increasing market values, in absolute
1emns when compared 1o the notional amownt of the swap, represent a
detenceation of the relerenced entity’s oredit soundness and a greater
Bkelihood o ik of dedautt o sther credit event acoureing as defined under
the terms of the agresment

Thee g s posential ameent o Tuture payments (undiscounted) tha

& Fund a5 & seller of protection could be requined to make under a credd
delault swap agreement equals the notional amount of the agreement
Motional amounts of each indendual credit delault swag agreement
outstanding i of period end Tos which a Fund is the seller of protection ae
disclosed in the Motes 1o Schedule of Imvestmenis. These patential amounts.
would be partially offset by any recovery vatues of the respective refierenced
obligations, upfiont payments fecened upon entenng into the agreesent, o
et amounts recerved Trom the settlement of buy protection cedit defauht
swap agreements enteved intg by a Fund for the same relerenced entiy o
eribed

Intarest Rate Swap Agroaments Cenan Funds ane subjec to intenest rate
risk expasure in the rnomal course of pursuing their imestment, objectves
Thee value of the fued rate bonds that a Fund holds may decease if interest
st dise To help hedge agendt ths risk snd b maintiEns 15 ability to
generabe income af prevailing market rates, a Fund may enter indo intedest
rabe swap agreements. Interest rale swap agreements evobve the exchange
bry & Fund with ancither party dor their eespectn commitrent 4 pay of
fECEnE meies) on the notional amocint of Fr.:'x'lp.ﬂ Comain foems af insesest
rabe swap agreemants may include: (i) interest rate caps, under which, in
retan for a premium, gne party agrees o make payments ta the other o the
exten that intenest ranes excesd a speafred rate, or “cap”, (i) intenest rae
floors, undes which, in return Tor @ premium, one paty ageees o make
paryments b the ather to the extent that interest rates fall below 3 specfied
rate. or “flooe® {ie] et cate collars, under whech 3 ety sl o cap and
purchases a floor o wvice versa in an atiempt to protect dsell agairst intesest
rate movements exceeding given minimum of magmum lievels, {iv] callable
mere rale swaps, under wiach the buyer pays an wpdiont foe n
consideration Tor the right 1o early terminate the swap transaction in whale,
at rere cost and at a predetermined date and time prigr 1o the matunsy date,
) spreadiacks, whech allow the infenest rate swap uwers to kock in the
forevaed differential (or spread) bepasen the interest rabe Swap rate and a
spedfied benchmark, or () basis swaps, under which two parties can
exchange variable imenest rates based on different segments of money
markets
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Tetal Aeturn Swap Agrewsseats: Cetain Funds may enter into total returm
Swg agEeements o gain of mitigate exposure to the underbying reference
Total retatn fandp Syneements imdhe oommitments whene tinghe o sultphe
cash flows are enchanged based on the price of an underfying reference assel
amd on a fied or variable snterest rate. Tofal retum swap agreements may
imecber commitmienas ta pdy milenest in exchanos for & market-linked return
One countesparty pays out the total retwen of a speofic underking relerence
assel. whith may inchade 3 single security, a basket of securties, or an index,
and i eenatn eocenes 3 Tooed or vadiable rate A2 the mabiity date, & net cash
T i3 exchanged whese the wotal retuin is equivalent 0o the retum of the
underkaing reference asset bess a financeng rate, if any. As a receiver, a

Fund would recenve payments based an any positive tolal retum and would
o payenents i the event of @ negatie total retuen As the payer, a

Fund weoudd cwe paymenids on any positive total retum, and would recere
payments in the event of 3 net neqatiee tofal retum

7. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

|a] Principad Riake In the normal couese of business, the Funds (o Arguired
Fund(s], if applicable} erade financial instruments and enter into financial
mansactions where ik of potenis os exists dust to duch thengs i chandges
in the market {market rsk) or failure or inability of the other party to a
transaction o perform (credit and countenparty risk). See below for a detailed
descripton of seect principal ks

Fund of Fands To the éxténg that cectien Funds imse] wiatantially al of thair
respectve assets i Aoquired Fund{s), the risks assocated wath investing in
these Funds will be dosely eelated to the risks assooated with the securities
and other imeegtments hidd by the Acquired Fundish The ability al the Funds
to achieve their respecinee investment objectives may depend upon the ability
of the Acquired Fund{s) 1o achieve ther respective imestment objectives
Thsres cain b o Ssurance that the imsistment objpscte of ary dusquined
Fund{s] wall be achieved The NAY of an Acgaring Fund will Ruciuse in
response to changes in the respective MAY of the Acgured Fund(s) in which it
ImisTs

In the neemal coure of biiress, Aogured Fund(s) trade fnandal insthamenis
and enter it finandal transactions where nisk of potential loss exists due to
thanges in the market {market risk), or failure or inabafity of the other party 1o
2 trarvaction 10 perfoem (credis and courterparty risk)

Parformance Linked Notes Risk To the extent each of the B-1 1605 [1PY) B
1605 (USD), B-1 1609 {IPY], B-1 1609 (USD), B-) 1642 (IPY) and B-) 1612
{USD) Classes of the AIMCO Berwda Income Fund E imest in Pedformance-
Linckefl Bl e, Thaiy wiall f-;ul:"-iD i imsfTment oppaitunities, which oould
neqatively impact the performance of such Class. In addition, such
Perlprmance-Linked Nates are unsecured obligations of Credd Suisse
Insernatanal and so the Cladie s E".ltﬂ'\-l‘"] v e eredee nak ol Crecky Snsge
Inpernatanal Furhermare; the Performance-Linked Notes will be adversely
affected in the event of a default, reduced credit rating, or deterioration in the
sttty Ol Criddt Surise Infematianal

Masket Ry & Fund's svestments in hinancial detmvatree instruments and

other Enandial instruments expase the Fund to vasious risks such as, but ot
limitad %o, inferest rate. foreign (non-U 5 } curency, equity and commadity

ks

Interest rabe nsk is the nsk that Toced ncome secuntses and other mstruments
held by a Fund may dedine in value because of an ingrease ininterest rates. If
nominal infenest rates rive, the value of conain fooed income secunties hakd by
3 Fund woiskd !b.rh' deciere A nonmingl iInDeEst 1308 i be Setonbed 25 the
sum of a real interest rate and an expected inflation rate Interest rate
changes can be sudden and unpeedictable. and a Fund may lose money o

these changes ace na! antiopated by Fund management. & Furd may not be
e 1o hedge pganst changes @ inlenest rabes Of may chioode not (o do o e
€031 of obher reasams. Im additicn, any hedges may nol week a5 mended

Dwration is 3 measure used to determine the sensithity of a4 seourity’s price to
changes in inberest rates that incorporates a secunty's yield, <oupan, fnal
maturity and call features, among other charactenstics. Cofvexily 5 an
additicnal measure wed 10 understand a secunty’s or Fund's interest rate
seniEnaty that measunes the rate ol :ham}l'ufdum'.nn 10 rEEpondE 10
chandges m interest rates. Fioed moome secunties wih longer durations tend
1o b more sersitive 1o changes in inferest rates, wually making them mose
yilatde than securities with shamer durations. A wide vatiety of factors can
caue inbitet rases of yiekds of U S, Tressury securties [or yelds of other
types of bonds) to nise (e g, central bank monetary polices, inflation rates,
general economic condibions, ete ). Thes is espacially tree under curent
conditions because interest rates and bomd pelds are near histoncally low
fevels Thus, the Funds currently face a heightensd bevel of risk associated
with rising interest rates andicr bord yiekds. This could be driven by a vanety
of factors, rcluding bt mat fimited 10 central bank monetany polices,
chandging anflatien of teal graeah rates, general econamic condithars,
increasing bond issuances or reduced market demand fior ow yefding
irnvestments. Furthes, wiihe U 5. bond markets have steadily grown oves the
parst three decades, dealer "market making™ abibty has remasmed relatively
stagnant. Given the importance of intermediary " market makang ™ in creating
a robarst and active market, foed income semibies are currenty

Tacing shereaded volatdhing and haudny ssks. All of these factars, collectrady
andfor individually, oould cause a Fund to bosevaloe If the Fund lost enough
value, the Fund could fage inceased Unitholder redempticns, which could
further ifmpar 2% Fqi‘.l’.:r'n.l.’lm Alad, ke Fund may be sdveriily afected
when a lange Unitholder purchases or redeems lange amounts of units, which
can oocur at any tme and may impact the Fund in the same marmer as a high
wolume of redemplion nequests. Laige Unithalder transschiond may impact
the Fund's biquidity and ret asset value Such transactions may also mreae
the Fund's transaction casts or atherwise cause the Fund to perform
dﬂqn:n'.h".hun infindid. Morigver, the Fund i subpsct to the figk Ehat

ather Unithalders may mate irvestment deceans based on the cholces af 3
e Linitholder

A Fund may have signiicant mporure to issuers in the United Kingdam. The
United Kingdom's withdtaval fram thee Eurapean Linon iy irmpact Fund
retwns. This decision may cause substantial velatfiy in foreign exchange
markets, lead to weakmess in the exchange rate of the British pound, resuit in
& sustaned pencd of market uncerianty, and destabilize some or 4 of the
atter Eurapean Unicn member countries and'os the Europane

Foreign (pon-U0 5 ) secunties in thes ieport ae dassdfied by the country of
TROparation ol a holding |n cectan emsiandes, & oty s countny af
imcorparation may be difierent from its countny of economic exposure

B a Fund irrvests directly im fonesgn {noneLl S | oorenecies or in securities that
trade in, and recence pevenued in, Toresgn (ron-U1 S }currencies, of in Bnancial
deticative instraments that prowide expasure 1o foreogn {Ron-U 5 1 oenendes,
it will e subject to the risk that those currencies wall decline in value relatve
10 the bage cureency of the Fund, or, in the case cf?‘wﬂg:ﬂu posations, that
the Fund's base cumency will dedine invalue relative to the currency being
hedged. Currency rates in Soreign counties may Hucheate signihcantly over
shart periods of time for 2 number of reasons, including changes in interes!
rabes, intervension {of the fallure 1o imervene) by U5 o fategn govennenents,
central banks or supranational entities such as the Internatonal Monetary
Fund, o by the impadition of cumendy controls of ciher political developments
w1 1k Unnad Stated of abroad A4 b iedalt a Fund s imeeiments in "\Cquu
curtency-denaminated securfties may teduce the Fund's returms
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The market values af equsties, such 25 common stocks and prefiered secutities
of equity related smestmints such o lures and optiong, hivd Felonically
resen and Fallen i periodic opdes and may decline due to general marker
conditions which are not specifically related to a particular compary, such as
redl oo periened adverse ecanemic condtians, changes n the general
outlook for corparate eaenings, changes in interest o ousrency fates, public
health emergendes, such as the spread of infectious iness or disease, or
o imoesice sentienent genetally. Thisy may also deching due 10 factors
which affect 3 particula indusiny o industnies, such as labhor shortages or
increased production costs and competitve conditions within an sndustry
Different types of equity securities may react differently to these

diswel it Ec|||||5I sicyrdtiees aned aquity felaed irestmients Qener iy s
greater market price volatility than fiwed income sequnties

The Funds may imeest in ceasn instruments. that rely in some fashion upon
LB0R. LBOR 15 an fverade slenes rate, detemined by the ICE Benchmark
Administration, that banks change one anather for the use of shoet-term
meney The United Eingdom's Financial Conduct Authonty, which regulates
LIBGR, hag announced plans 1o utimately phase out the use of LIBOR Thee
remaien uncertainty reqardeng future utilzaten of LIBOR and the nature of
amy replacement rate (e g, the Secured Overmight Financing Rate, which is
intereded 1o replace U 5. dollar LIBOR and measures the cost of avernight
borrowings theousgh repurthiase agresment transactions collateralined with
U.S. Treasury securities) Any potential effects of the transition away from
LIBOR on a Fund ar on oertan mstruments in which a Fund imsests can be
difficult 16 asceran, and they may vary depending on & vasiety of factors. The
transiton may aloa result in a eeduction in the vafue of oevtan instruments
held by a Fund o5 a reduction in the effectiversss of related Fund tramsactions
sisch i hedges Any fuch il of the trasdilion Ty Tram LIBOR, & well
as other unforeseen effects, could result on losses to a Fund

Begreing in lanuary 2020, global finencad markets have expenienced and
My contmue 1o expersence significant volatlity resulting feom the gpeead of 2
nowvel coronavieus known a3 COVID-19. The cutherak of COVID-19 has
resutted in travel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain

disrup oo, koweer consumid demand and gineral marked uncertanty. The
global ecanamy, the economies of cenain nations and indnadual Bsuers hae
been and may conbinue 1o be adversely affected by COVID-19, particularly in
light ol the interconnectivity between economies and financial markets, all of
which may negatively impact the Funds” peformance. In addition, COVID-19
and grvernmental responses to COVID- 19 may negatively impact the
tapabafitiess of the Funds' senvice providers and desnpt the Funds' cperations

Cawdit and Countorparty Risks A Fuond will Be saposed o credif sk 1o
parties waith i i irades and will aleo bear the nisk of wsmleme defauh

A Fund menamizes concentrations of credit nisk by undertaking fransadions
with a Leege number of customens and counteipastes on recognized and
reputable ewchanges, where applicable, OTC dernatie trandactions are
subject to the risk that a counteparty to the transaction will ot fulfill its
coetractual obligatioes 1o the other party, 2= many ol the pratections aflorded
o centrally cheared demvatne fransactions maghl pal be aanlatle {oe OTC
derivatve fransactions. For demvatives traded on an ewchange or theough a
ceniral counberparty, credit nsk: resides with 1he areditworthiness of

ther Funed's chearing brokes, or the :lnolln]hwwl::,l:-{ rathed than wath 3
counterparty inan OTC dervatree tramsaction. Changes in regulation relating
ter-a Fund's use of derivatives and related instruments could petentially limit
of irpact the Fund's ability 1o irmeesit in dermeatress, hmit the Fund's abibty 1o
employ cenam strabeges that e dernatives and'on adversely afiect the value
or periamance of dervatives and the Fund A Fund could kese money if the
issuer or quaranter of a fived mcome secufity, of the counterparty ta a
findrcial dervatne indtnuments contract, repurchase apeemint of & oan of
portiolio senuribes, is unable or umwiling to mabe timely principal andfor

ivierest payments, of 1o otherase bonor its cbbgations. Securities and
financrl derivatem insliurments are subject 1o vanying degries o credit ek,
which may be reflacted in cradit ratings

Similar to credit sk, a Fund may be exposed to counterparty sk, or the risk
1had an institation o other entity with which a Fund has unsettled or apen
transactons will defaule FIMCO, as the Manager, minimizes countesparty
risks to the Funds through 3 raember of wiays. Prior to enbering info
Trafsachions with & niw coomlepaity, the FIMLD Counterparty Hisk
Commitiee conducts an extensive credit eview of such counterparty and muss
approve the use of such counterparty. Furthermore, pursuant 1o the terms of
thar unededtying consfact, to the extent that unpasd amounts owed 1 a Fund
exceed o predetermined thiethold, such counerpary shall sdvance collaers
1z a Fund in the form of cash or seounties equal in vafue 1o the unpasd
amount owed to a Fund. A Fund miy imvest such collateral in secufities of
ather imstuments and will fypically pay intesest 1o The countesparty on the
collateral recened If the unpaid amaunt ewed ta a Fund subsaquenthy
decreases, 3 Fund would be tequired to retum to the counterparty al or a
pamtion of the collateral pln'm:.l'; adranced PIMCD'S aftempls bo minimide
counterparty sk may, howevet, be unsuccesshol

Cantingent comvertible securities [ Colos™ ) are a form of hybrid debt security
erund primarily by nerell S, isuers, which have loss abrsorption mechanisms
Buitt into theie terms. Colios have no stabed maturity, have fully dsoebonary
coupons and are typically issued in the form of subcedinabed debt
wntruments Colos generally aither (orren inlg equity of thee s or have
thetr princpd weitten down upan the gcourrence of certain Dggening events
{"miggers”) belked 1o regulatory capital thresholds of regulaiogy actions
relating to the isswer’s continged viability. As a result, an imvestment by a
Fund in CoCos i subject 1o the ik that coupon (e, interest) Panyrboils. My
ke cancelled by the issuer or a regulatory autharity in order fo help the issuer
akrsorb losses. An imvestment by @ Fund in CoCos i5 2850 subject bo the nsk
that. in the event of the liquidason, desoluion of winding-up of an msuer
peior to @ trigger event, a Fund's rights and claims wall genesally rank junioe
1o the claims of bolders of the issuer's other debt obligations. In addition, i
Colod hirld by a Fund ane comermed into the ssueds underlyng equity
secunties Tellowing a treager evenit, the Fund's holding may be furshe:
subordinated due to the comersion from a debt to equity énstrument. In
ceitain soenaios, investors in CoCos may suffer a loss of capital ahead of
equity halders or when eguity holdess do not. Thene = no guarantes that a
Fund wil recere a return of prncipal on CoCes. Any indication that an
automalic write-diwm of corversion event may ooour can be expected 1o have
an adverse effect on the market price of CoCos. Colos ane often rated below
enestment grade and are subiject o the nisks of high yeld securities. Because
Colos are moued prenaity by financial institutions, CoCos may presen
substantally increaded coks at timed ol fnarcal turmoil, which could affect
financial institutions mare than companies in ather sectors and industries
Further, the valse of an investment in CoCos & unpredictabde and will be
influenced by many factors and risks, inchding interest rate risk, credit risk,
market risk and bpusdiry risk An imvestmert by @ Fund in CoCeos may resulyin
Tersses bo the Fund

AR rrasactions in listed securities ane setthedipaid for upon delivery usng
approved counberparties. The sk of default is considered minimal, as delbvery
ol seaurites sold is oefy made coce 8 Fund has recerved payment. Payment is
made on a purchase once the secunties have been defreerad by the
courdespasty. The trade will Tail if either party Tails 1o meet its shligaton

1) Othar Risks In genesal, each Fund may be subpeo o addivonal nisks,
mcluding, but not limited o, risks related to govermment regulation and
imenvenhicn in linandeal markets, operational rsks, ks assocaied with
financial, economic and global market desuptions, and obenecuting miks
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Please reder so each Fund's offenng decuments for 2 more detailed
description al the msks of irvestng n the Fusd

Madkst Disruptions Risk The Funds e subect no imeestment and
operational risks associated with financial, economic and other global market
dewelopments and disrupbions, induding thase ansing from war, teronism,
marke manipulation, governmient menventoed, defaolis and shutdawns,
politcal changes o dpfamatic developments, pubibe health emegendes
{such: as the spoead of infectious deeases, pandemics and epidemics) and
naturalferraronmental dsasters, which can all |:r:|].1h'|+, impct the secsilies
markess, miededs fa%es, aucnons, secondary trading, ratings, credi msk,
inflation, deflation and ather factors relating to the Fund's imeestments o2 the
Manage:'s operations and carse a Fund to kose value. These events may hive
advesse long-tem efiects on the U S and world economéss and markets
generally. These events tan also impair the technology and ather cparational
systems upon which a Fund's senice providers, inchuding PIMKCO as the
Funds' imestimen] b, |-:'|"_-’_ Il eould seheniase disrunt & Fond s ieaace
providers’ ability to fulfill thesr ohligatans to the relevant Fund For example,
the spread of an infectious respiratony Bness caused by 3 novel strain ol
coconaie (known 3 COVID-19) han caised volatdity, sivent marked
dislocations and Hquidity corstraints in mamy markets and may adversely
affect a Fund's imvestmenis. and operations.

Goverament Interveation in Finaneial Markets. Fedenal, state, and other
qieernments, Ther cequlatofy agencuss, oF ‘;E“-I\\]J!;JID",‘I:\':].H'II.}'.I'.:’;II& ay
teke actions that affect the regulation of the Estruments in which a Fund
imvests, or the issuers of such nstruments, in ways that are unfoceseeabde
Legiskation oe nequlation mary alse change the way in which a Fund itsetl is
regulaied. Such legklation o regulation could limit or prediude a Fund's
ability to achieve its iwvestment objectae Furthermess, volatile finandial
markets can epode 8 Fund 1o greater macket and hquadity nik and patential
difficulty in valung portfiola mstruments held by the Fund The walue of 2
Fund’s holdings is ako generaly subject to the risk of fubwe local, naticeal, or
global ecanomic desturbances based on unknown weaknesses in the mackets
i wihuch & Fund imvests Bn adsidn, 1l ob ol ceman that the U 5 Govednment
wall irrlervene in response bo a futuse market disturbance and the effect of any
such future intenvention cannat be predicted It is difficult for sssuers o
prepate for the impact of fusure financial downturns, although compasees can
spek 1o identify and manage Tusure uncertainties through risk manapement
programs

Regellatery Rlgk Financal entities, such as imvestment companies and
imnesdment adveers, e generally subject 10 extendive govemmient regulation
and infervention Govemment requlation andicr intervention may changs the
wity 3 Fumnd is requilated, aflect the expenses inoumed dinectly by a Fund and
the value of it meesimients, and limit andfor preclude a Fund's abilty 1o
achieve i mvestment obpacine. Govemment requiation may change
frequently and may have signiicant adverse consequences. Momover,
goveinment requlation may have unpredictable and unintended effects

Dparational Risk An imesstment in & Fund, hle any fund, can mrole
operational rsks ansing from factors such as processing enroes, human enors
inadequate or Tailed internal or external processes, failures in systems and
technology, chaingit in perdonnel and enors cauted by thed-pary senice
prowiders. The eccurrence of any of these Faluees, errors or breaches could
result in a loss of mlormation, requiatony scuteny, reputational damage o
other events, any of which could have & material adverse effect on a Fund
Whilie & Fund eeks to mifemube such enhls theough contioR and overigi,
there may sl be fafures that coubd cause ksses to the Fund

Cybae Sacarity Risk As the use of technology has become maore prevalent in
the coursie of Businisss, the Funds have become potentally more susteplible
Lo operationsl and mloemation security tisks resulting from bresches in cyber

secunty. & breach in oyber secunity refers 1o both mtentional and
uninlgndional oyber events that may, among athér thangs, caube a Fund to
lerse propristary inforemation, sufler data coeuption andior dessnuction of ke
operational capacity, result in the unauthorzed release or ather misuse of
confidential informatsan, or othenwise disrugt namal Business opasans
Cyber secunity Balures or breaches may result in finaencial krsses to a Fund and
its Urithcldars. Thesa failures or breaches may afso result in disruptions to
brusiness opbratans, potentiathy resultang in hinancial losses; mieference with
& Fund's ability to calouiste s ned et value, process Lnstholder
transactions of athenwise ransact basiness with Unitholders; impedenents 1o
trading: vialations af applcabile prvacy and other laws; regulatory fines;
e rn;-ur.i‘.lau.ll dharmusgis, neimbuesement of alker oErpiEntahon oot
additonal compliance and oybser security risk management costs and other
adverse consequentes. In addibon, substantial costs may be inourned in onder
1y preveni amy cybet incalients in the future

8. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may bie subject o various nething arangements "Mattee
Aagreements”) with select counterpartes. Master Agreements govem the
terms of certan transactions, and are tended 1o reduce the counterparty risk
asocated with releant iransactions by sped !',mq cradil protechan
mechanams and peovedeng standardization that is intended to imgnowe legal
ceitainty. Each type of Master Agreemsent govems certain types of
transactions. Different types of ransactions may be traded out of di®lerent
fegad erities or affifases of & pamicular onganization, resulting in the need for
multiple agreements with a single counterparty. As the Master Agreements
e speaie ta unique cperatons of different st types, they alow aFynd 1o
chose o and net it total expasune 1o & countepanty in the event of & deault
with respect 1o 3l the transactions governed under a anabe Master
Agreement with 3 countesparty. For fnandial reporting purposes the
Statermerits of Assets and Lighdnes qeneraly present demvatoe assets and
Fabalities an @ gross basis, which reflects the full nsks and expasunes priot to
netting

Magter Agreemints can 4o help bmn countesparty nisk by specifng
collateral postng arangements af pre-arranged exposure levels, Urnder morst
Master Agreements, coflaberal is routinety fransferred if the total ret expasure
16 cetan tramachions (nel of exsting collsteral already in plhate) govened
under the relevant Madter Agreement with 3 counberparty in 8 qhen socounl
exreeds a specified threshold, which typscally ranges Trom zero to 5250,000
depending cn the counteparty and the type of Master Agreement United
Snates Teeasury Bils and U5, doller cash ane gemerally the prefiesned fooms of
collateral, althcugh other securities may be used depending on the terms
outlined in 1he apphcable Master Agreement Secuntes and cash pledged as
collateral are reflected o 25sets on thee Statements of Agses and Liabilines &
either & companent of Imestments at value (securities) of Deposis with
counterparty. Cash collateral received is not typscally held in a segregated
aceeant and a5 such 1z reflected a5 a labilty on the Statements of Assets and
Liahilities as Depeosits from counterparty. The market value of any seoatites.
recefved as collateral is nod reflected 3s a component of MAY. The Fund's
oeeral eposure 1o counterparty risk can change substantially within a shonl
peviod, & it is affecied by each rarsacnon subject to the pebevant Master
Agresment

Magter Repurchase Agreements and Globa Masies Repurchase Agreements
{indniciualy and collectrvely °Murster Repo Agreements” ) givern repurchise,
reverse repurchase, and sale-buyback ransactions between the Funds and
sebect counberparties. Master Rlepo Agreements maintain provisioers o,
among other thirgs, iniation, income payenents, events of delauly, and
maintenance of collateral The market value of ransactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collateral pledged or received, and the net exposure by

il et | Dessba 3. 2071

171/286



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Octaker 31, 2031

Notes to Financial Statements

TN O
es, and deared OTC

as determined

Mgt Agri
E5 ransaCiicns
h transactions require posting of inital ma

the C emenadity
e United States, counterparty nisk

Ttunes cormees
Fubures Trading C

T QETRTINY BRG

tures and deared OTC da

el LD
etvalue of OTC
ed, and net

hie Motes ta

e by oou

Schedule of

172/286



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to Financial Statements co Detaber 31, 2021

B. FEES AND EXPENSES

wred is subject ng fees payable at the follorwng annual rates (stated as a percernage of the average dally net assets of each Fund, or Class, if
taken separately)
Fors

Fund Manapssant Adwirary _Administrative Ageacy Destribuiion
MMCO Esrmuda Emerging Markets Boad Fund Il

= lanl VY 05% 020

= lagl JFY, Hedged) - 0F5% 0% -
PIMCO Eermuda Globsl Aggregate Ex-Japsn Bend Fund (M) - 0% 0.20% = —
MMCO Bermuda Income Fand &

a  FUPYI -

& FED) - - = = -

= JUPY

= Jush) - - = = =

& K35

= WUPY Advinary | 0 T58% - w 01

& W USD Adveang) 0 75% = = 005% D655

=  HUFT

= H{uEh) - = = = -

= NN 5Dk E

= P UPY) [UB5% 0UB5%

&  QUPT = = = = I

= R LF

= 5P - = = =

T i =

w U pEm 0T0%

WSl - DES% 020% - -

= KUPH DED%

= N s = = = =

& ¥ UFY]

= ¥ {UsD - - - - ~

& TP - -
PIMCO Eermada Mevigage Dpportenitios Fund

& sl PV Hedged) a5 - - -

& JUPT

= JRUED| - - - - -

= 50 - -
PIMCO Bermuda U.5. High Yoeld Fand I i) B35% LH%
PIMCO Coire Inceme Corporate Bend Fuad 2020-10

= Uish 040% 0 10% DiB5%
FIMCO Short-Term Mortgage [scoma

= R [&5% 005% 0%

= JUIPY, Hedgndh

- JPY D45 0:40%

= L&D PELL - - 5% 0.20%
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Fund Manap 1 Adwisary Administrati Agrnty Diigeta ibeastion
PIMCO World High kncema 0T0% 00 10% 055%

Ress Papirt | e 11, 2
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Years Since of Each Class Fuicentaps COSC
| macheding frst yew anreversaryh 300
2 lnackedhiog sscoad paar swivaiiany] T4
3 machodieg thad ye arsiverian) 1.B0%
4 innciading foarth ar ssniveesany 1.20%
E lmacheding Iifth year il U.HT!
Tharealtar 0.00%

With tespect to the calodatgn of the COSC. the walue of the redempsian amount will be the then-gument HAY of the units bing reparchased. Furthermong, ey
applicable CD5Cs wall be deducted from the repurchase proceeds and wall be payable to the Fee Agent For the year ended Octaber 31, 2021, the B-1 1605 (IFY), B-I
1805 (USDY, B-) Y609 (1PY), B-) 1609 (LSO, B-) 1642 UPY). and B-1 1612 (U0 Classes of the PS40 Bermuda Income Fund E paid W117,397, 218 in ABSC and
¥14.519.404 in CDSC to the Fee Agent

The Funds far Classes thereal, a5 applicable) may bear ather experses related to their operation that ae net covered by the management, advesary, admirsstrat e,
agency or distribubion fees, induding bart not limited toc (i) tawes and govesnmental fees; (i) brokerage fess and commissions and other portiolio transattion expenses;
{in} costs of bomowing money, induding interest epensa; (v extraordnary expenses, including costs of Bligation and indemnification expenses; and (v} amy experies
allocared of dfocable 10 & gpecific Chass of units. PIMCO has pand the cegarizational expenses associated with the creation of the Trust, except far PRACO Sha-Term
Maongage Income. PIMCO has paid the organizational expenses assadated with the ceation of the Trust PIMCD has paid the arganizatonal expenses asocabed wath
PIMCO Core ncome Corporate Bond Fund 2000- 1075 initial set-up, except for the formation expenses associated with PIMCO Cone Income Corporate Band Fund
2020-10°5 ininal puble offening of Unies and related Securities Registranon Statesent flings, which include costs of prsiting the prospectus and the sabis materials
theat are ralated 1o the FIMCO Cose Income Cotpoeate Bond Fund 2020-100s sale of Units i Japan Such fermation epenses ae reflected as Organizatian Casts in the
Statement of Opesations

The Trustes and the Manager have appomted Credit Suisse Intemational a5 the agent ot the PIMCD Bermusda Income Fund E Tor purposes ol financing placement feet
to be paid to certain detnbutces. Under a Tee agent appointment ag eement eniered io amang the Trustee, the Manager, and Credit Sursse Inbernational {the °Fee
Agent Agpoiniment Agreement” ), Ceedit Suisse kntarnational has been appeinted to: (1) effect payment of certain distnbution fees to the lapanese dstnbutors in
acoordars with the Fee .ﬁ.-;(n'l Apegintmen] Agesmint and the e of varous II|"".ID\.1| few legiers, and (a) make all caloulatsons and determenations required 10 be
made uhder the Fee Agent Appoiniment Agresment

FIRACO andlor s affiliates will intially advance to the PIMCO Bermuda Imcome Fund E begal expenses incumed in connection wath executing the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and assodated legal agreements for the B-1 1605 (1P} and B-1 1605 (USE) Classes of units of the FIMCD Bermada Income Fund E (the “Fee
Agent Legl Expensies™) AL the end ol these Classes' initil affering penods, the Fund vall be requered toc () reimbuese to PIMCO andlor igs aflikates the greates of (a)
W10 millian o {b) & 20% of the aggregate amounts vvested in such Classes during their initial offering penicds (such @mount not to excead the Fee Agert Legal
Expenses advanced), and (i) amontize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses to the relevant Class over the first fiscal year of #s opesations. All or a porticn of the remairing
Fee Agern Legal Experdes acvaniced may be expensed 1o Tuture B share dasses added 10 and offered by any senes of the Teust, FIMCO Bermuda Tousy, AIMCO
Bermuda Trust IV, FIMCO Cayman Trust andior PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited withen one year feom the end of the inetial ofiering periods of the B-§ 1605 [IFY] and B-1
1605 (LISD) Classes of units of the AMCD Bermada Income Fund E of sisdh other peviod of time that the kmestment Adviser determines in its discretion

In addtion, PRACO andior its alfdiates wall inibally advance 1o the AIMCD Bermuda Ingome Fund E legal expenses inturned in conrection with emecuting the Fee Agent
Appointment Mlmmw:'. and xxociabed legal agreements fioe the B=0 160 [1FY) and 8-1 1609 (USD] Classes of units of the FMOD Bermoda Incame Fund E (2k0 2
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses) Af the end of the B-1 1609 (IPY) and B-1 1609 (USD} Classes” mitial offening periods, the FIMCD Bermusda Incoene Fund E wall
be requaed &o; (1) reimbaurse to FIMCD and'or s athhiates the greater of; (a] ¥10 million or () 0. 20% of the aggregate amounts imvested in such Classes duning their
initial o#foning pesiods (such amcunt not 9 exceed the 1otal of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced and the urseimbursed portion of any Fee Agent Legal Experdes
prevouwsly advamced in connectson with the creation of any B share class of amy senes of the Trust, PIMEO Bermuda Trust, PIMCO Bermudla Trust IV, PIMACO Cayman
Trust ansdfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within ore year from the respectve ends of the initial ofering or such other period of time that the Investment Adviser
determings in it discrencal, and (i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses 1o the relevant Class ower the firss fiscsl year of it operations. All or a portion of the
remdnrersy Fee Agern Legal EBxpenses advanced may be expensed 1o fubue B share dasses added 10 and offeted by any senes of the Trust, PIMEO Beemuda Trust
PIMCD Bermusta Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman Trust andor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respectsve ends. of the initial oftesing periods or such
other period of time that the frvestment Adviser detemmines in its distretion

FMCO andlor ks affiliates vill slsa initially advance 1o the FINCO Bermuda Income Fund E legal expenses incured in connection with execsting the Fea Agent
Appointment Agreement and assodated legal agreements for the B-1 1612 (IPY) aned B-1 1612 (U80) Classes of units of the FIMCO Bermauda Income Fund E (a0 a
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses) At the end of the B-1 1612 (IPY) and B-1 1612 (USD} Classes’ mitial offering periods, the FIMCD Bermusda Incoeme Fund E will
be resqueted 8o: () reimbarse 1o FIMCO andlor ins affiliates the grester of: (2} ¥10 million ee (8] 0 20% of the agqeegate amaunts imvested in such Classes duning their
initial offenng periods (sudh amount not 10 exceed the 1otal of the Fee Agent Legal Bxpenses advanced and the unreimbursed portion of any Fee Agent Legal Expenses
previously advanced in connection with the creation of any B share diass of any series of the Trust, PINCD Bermuda Trust, PIMCO Bermuca Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman
st anddor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respectae ends of the initial ofening o such other peeiod of tme thae the imestment Adiser
determines in ies discretion], and (i) amartize such Fes Agent Legal Expenses 1o the relevant Class over the first iscal year of its operasons. All oo a portion of the
rem:arirg Fee Agent Legal Bxpenses advanoed may be expensed to fubwe B share dasses added to and offered by any series of the Trust, PIMCO Bermuda Trust,
PIMCO) Bermusdla Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman Trust andlor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one yeas from the respectae ends. of the mitial offering periods o such
other period of time that the | mestrment Adviser determmanes in it discretion. For the year ended Ooober 31, 2007 these wene no more Fee Agent Legal Expenses
IEmEring
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PINCO Barmusda Encome Fund & (the M UPY Advisony) and M [USD Adviscey)

t-Term .‘.’.n"..].]:jl- Incgme {she ELUE, 1Y, and USD Classes) and
FIMCD Wioekd High Income pary on i 1o the pe 1

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Agset Manag
5 of Assats an

The In
disclesed i

ik Advried 15 0 nelabed paty Lo the Furd and mam
9, and acensed telated parmy fee amaunts, iF amy, are dedosed o

% AG. Fees paid 10 the relas

L

il arey, ane

Alliarg Asset Management AG, a related party of the Trust, swned 0.006% of the net assats of PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund, 0.0059% of the
net assets ol FIMOD Beimipda M Tgage Dppo Furd and 0835% of the net asets of PINCD Short-Tem Morigage bncomse as of Qctaber 31, 2021

]

Cetain Funds are permitted 1o purchase or self secunties Trom o to cenain related afffiated furd: under speaiied condtions cutlined in peocedures adogried by the
Imvestment Adviser. The peocedures have been desigred o ensure that any pusthase of sabe of secunites by a fund from or 1o another fund that is o could be
corvindeing a0 athihate by wirtis &l hiwang 2 commen adveer (o afiuated svestiment adhaseni), vk illecrid at the cuirent makit pice Dy g Tht pinicd ended Dctobed
31, 2021, the Fundls) paged in purchaded and sales of sagurities Aoy aflibated funds (amounts in thoy sands)

Fund

3

NI Barrrta Bak Loan Furd IM % § B3
PRMCD Bormudy Emprgeng Markets Bond Fund | 5,540
PML0 Barmoda Emengeng Markopts Soad Fund | B[N

ML) Barmaats Globm! Apsraguns Ex-Japas Bord Furd (M1
P Bervricels Ircome Fond £

3

15313
PN Barmodiy Low Duratbon ncose Fund 21
PMLD Bermuda Morigage Dpportunites Fund ]
PAMCE) B 11 S High Yedd Fored (M) 28 T
PANC0) Bormcada U 5. High Yiedd Fond B (4 T I8

B}

MDD Cons Income Cosporate Bond Fund AT20-00
PIMCT Emanging Eand Incorme fusd (M

L2

=

11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Under the Trust's ceganizational doouments, certain parties {induding the Trustee and PIMCO) are indemnified agairst certain labilites that may arise out of
srmnance of their dutses 10 the Funds Addibionally, in the normal <ourse of business, theF T nta contracts that contain & vanety o endemnifics classes
The Funds” manmism exposure under these amangements is unknowen as this veould invoive future dams that may be made against the Funds that have rot yel

ooourred. However, the Funds have not had pries daims of losses pursuant 1o these contracts

12. UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Toust may issue up o 500, 000,000,000 units. The Funds may have a significant concentration of rsk, as certain Unitholiers cwn mote than ten percent of the net
assets of each respective Fund Such toncentration of Unitholders’ Initholders request to
withdkanw substantal amounts of capital at the same time Subsonipt I NAN orency and
coervenied bo the Funds' funchonal umency a1 the spot rate on the transaction date. Urets of each Fund are issued without par value. The Trustee, wath the consent of
the Manager, may in the future create and oHer an additonal Fund or Clags o ©

Changes i units of benedcial intenest were a4

Detober 31, 2071 Detsbar 31, 3011 Dessber 31, 221 Oetebar 31, 2221
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Notes to Financial Statements g Detaber 31, 2021

Yoar Erdsd Voar Endad Yimar Ended Yoar Endad

Detober 37, 2071 Ocisber 31, 201 Detuber 31, 200 Oetber 31, 2071
Unimn Azt it temast linize [ I Amasnt
[ q [y Wik i [ Hik Hik
Hih Kok [ Nk = 1 e Wik Hik
Hih Wik T [T T m I
LT KA MR L 18 v HiA Hid
Hik WA NB NA 13 s MiA Hi&
Wik Hik [T} Wik Wi [T T
Wik Wik 5 TAE T [ I Wik
Wik ik ) ik 2 (i ] Wik Wik
Hik Wik M NIk 15 L A m
m Hih [T} Wik 713 TR Wik Hik
Hik Wik i 0E] [T T T Wik
TR ik [ T Hik [ Wik WA
Hik Hik [T NIk 11,0811 5.643] Wik HiA
m Hi .51 Iasm A [T i Wik
M WA i (1547 ik WA HiA HIA
NiA HA [ | Fe] AL [ WA HiA HIA
LI KA LY L1 [ 1] (LR Kik NIk
s Wik [Ty T i34 8,655 Hik HiA
Wik Wik [T T Wik [T 58] ]
Hih oA am HET WA i WA Hib
M LE L4 Ry L] 14,1471 MR HiA
Hik Hiw [T} Wik {5361 [[FE] Wik HIA
¥ TTET) Hih Wik N Wik 4 .00 T Wik
(A= Hih Wik [ A T [T I Wik
T -
Fird vt Tpmmacton (AL0B 8 {HZEOY oA 8 EEEm (BT & ST @mn 8 amE
Yiar Ended  Pared Endet Yo Endd Yot Erded
Detsher 31, 2001 Dctsber 31, T2 Detsber 31, 2000 O tbee 31, 2071
Usita At [ Senesant Unita Ameant lista At
P gt Ter oy pid NiA WA [T MIA e B T5EY Hik Hik
et P Mtk Wik m [ Hik [ Wb B
ret I, Hadiged| Hik Hok [T [T ik [ 5 ]
TPt Hib I T Kk [ NIk Hik
usD Hik WA 1] k1] K A HA Hi&
husd d rerweedmi] of
tatrion HOk ik N Mk [ 0 Hik Hik
¥ Werkdl T 1 om [T} [T T [T Wik Hib
Lot of unts rodoasond ) Wik [T Wk TEN) [T Wk WA
"~ LI Nk Hik [T Wik [T [ {1581 [F]
Nk [ [T Y Hin A @ e
KA Wik Ll -] i A HiA HiA
na 1M1 NI WiA Kia KA HIA ™
resatng dren Fund e
et na B (1] 1950 1512 [Lic]] % T AT i (] 11

Ll et | Dessba 3. 2011

177/286



fNotes to Financial Statements g

Yoar Ended

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Vo Eadd

Y Enid
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Notes to Financial Statements co
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g For cony el 12 ] 8141
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13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

&
2

The Funds aze not named as defendants in ry material ltigabnon or arbitratson proceedings and are not aware of any matenal libgaton o claim pendin

threatensed against ther

& R years that

2 mapor fax jurisdictions
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Sehedule of Investments PIMGO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
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] AL

beiid
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005 don DAY + a2Eme 4,240
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1550 dow OMOS30S o] 4]
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Sehedule of Investments PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10 oot
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2021 10
e e
366,485 42,307,028
1,500 173,160
364,985 42,133,868
3,546,035
102.93 11,882
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2022
807,608,901.74 932 3,037
850,000
74,205.46
850,000
250,000
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150,000

150,000
1,250,000

2018 192,872,867.64
2019 156,055,242
2020 606,851,577.58
2021 778,167,993.64
2022 807,608,901.74
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2022
L

Adam Gubner

Adam Shukovsky

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandol

Ti

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Andrew R. Jessop

Anna Dragesic

Ayman Hindy
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Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Christian Stracke

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel J. lvascyn

Daniel H. Hyman

David C. Flattum

David Fisher

David L. Braun

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

(Eve Tournier)

Frank Witt

Geraldine Sundstrom

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason R. Steiner

Jason Mandinach

Jerome M. Schneider
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Joachim Fels

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Stafford

Libby Cantrill

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Clavel

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau

Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang

Ravi K. Mattu

(Rene Martel)
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Richard R. LeBrun

Rick Chan

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

Ryan Korinke

(Sachin Gupta)

Scott A. Mather

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sudi N. Mariappa

Sung Hee Suh
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1971
1940

60

PIMCO
PIMCO
BMA
BMA

2022 331
818,839,737,131

113 483,773,121,918

23 16,346,250,289

13 25,535,671,388
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69 210,560,961,317
9 9,976,085,145
30 8,661,744,844
36 21,367,506,219
15 25,123,642,578
3 828,178,087
5 2,683,882,153
15 13,982,693,193
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2022 31
115.44
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2020 2019 12 31

2020 2019
2(d) 670,905,056 77,449,280 422,556,446 48,779,916
2(e),3 30,870,470 3,563,687 30,623,395 3,535,165
2(H) 798,701,996 92,202,158 698,851,736 80,675,444
2(H) 314,822,326 36,343,089 282,546,439 32,617,161
45,702,592 5,275,907 36,373,824 4,198,994
2(H) 23,912,871 2,760,502 25,219,844 2,911,379
2(k),8(e) 19,755,282 2,280,550 19,239,181 2,220,971
7 17,306,918 1,997,911 13,010,339 1,501,914
64,128,683 7,403,015 60,915,714 7,032,110

1,986,106,194 229,276,099  1,589,336,918 183,473,054

2020 12 31

213,677,355 2019 12 31
183,689,431 2(9),5 121,111,682 13,981,133 139,127,937 16,060,929
2().10 195,322,419 22,548,020 209,441,754 24,177,956
2(k),8(e) 855,055,452 98,707,601 669,472,591 77,283,916
2(i) 30,865,176 3,563,076 30,865,176 3,563,076
2(h),6 35,265,467 4,071,046 30,124,648 3,477,589
2(b) 14,710,139 1,698,138 16,086,963 1,857,079
9 51,541,356 5,949,934 33,253,757 3,838,814

1,303,871,691 150,518,948 1,128,372,826 130,259,359

3,289,977,885 379,795,047  2,717,709,744 313,732,413
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2020 2019

398,802,753 46,037,790 409,454,573 47,267,436

7 228,000,000 26,320,320
8 216,289,372 24,968,445 208,752,447 24,098,382
4 122,043,872 14,088,745 124,895,219 14,417,904
23§).10 33,157,779 3,827,734 30,057,351 3,469,821
7 37,379,146 4,315,049 21,460,619 2,477,414
2(s).8(e) 19,755,282 2,280,550 19,239,181 2,220,971
4,928,294 568,922 11,190,145 1,291,790
832,356,498 96,087,234  1,053,049,535 121,564,038
2(s),8(e) 855,055,452 98,707,601 669,472,591 77,283,916
2(j).10 204,137,201 23,565,598 220,717,637 25,479,644
8 152,799,181 17,639,137 164,382,884 18,976,360
4,306,979 497,198 3,022,510 348,919
1,216,298,813 140,409,535  1,057,595,622 122,088,839
2,048,655,311 236,496,769  2,110,645,157 243,652,877
850,000 (103,214,782)  (11,915,114)  (683,902,349)  (78,949,687)
150,000 1,308,035,518 150,999,620  1,288,040,853 148,691,436
2020 12 31 58,608
2019 12 31 48,876 43,399,986 5,010,094 28,952,832 3,342,315
2020 12 31
148,726 2019 12 31 153,400 8(a) 37,843,422 4,368,645 32,501,945 3,762,414
2(p) (44,741,570)  (5,164,967)  (58,618,694)  (6,766,942)

1,241,322,574 143,298,278 607,064,587 70,079,536
3,289,977,885 379,795,047  2,717,709,744 313,732,413
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2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019

2(f) 4,012,403,139 463,191,818 3,801,610,877 438,857,960
2(f) 1,095,151,513 126,424,291 1,011,008,189 116,710,785
2(f) 1,155,727,878 133,417,226 1,152,533,169 133,048,429
2(f) 360,487,808 41,614,713 380,555,089 43,931,279
2(f) 46,057,465 5,316,874 23,903,886 2,759,465
6,669,827,803 769,964,922 6,369,611,210 735,307,918
8 2,283,500,614 263,607,311 2,125,025,461 245,312,939
4 777,771,809 89,785,978 857,070,964 98,940,272
2(t) 605,822,180 69,936,112 637,010,892 73,536,537
235,901,474 27,232,466 214,712,229 24,786,380
5,10 168,804,503 19,486,792 159,176,036 18,375,282
2(0) 108,835,693 12,563,992 120,596,262 13,921,632
43,316,136 5,000,415 50,264,299 5,802,511
44,512,301 5,138,500 27,702,379 3,197,963
4,268,464,710 492,751,566 4,191,558,522 483,873,516
2,401,363,093 277,213,355 2,178,052,688 251,434,402
52,168,123 6,022,288 57,347,069 6,620,146

23D,
10 (6,676,919) (770,784) (10,703,929) (1,235,662)
2(b) (1,321,069) (152,504) (1,278,635) (147,,606)
2,445,533,228 282,312,356 2,223,417,193 256,671,281
9 103,991,820 12,004,816 98,821,295 11,407,930
2,341,541,408 270,307,540 2,124,595,898 245,263,350
2(p) 13,877,124 1,601,975 6,577,523 759,309
2,355,418,532 271,909,515 2,131,173,421 246,022,660
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2019 12 31

PIMCO

2020 12 31

2020 2019 12 31
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850,000 (792,957,184) (91,538,977) 150,000 1,267,204,122 146,286,044 45,705 23,722,086 2,738,478

1,556,133,972 179,640,106 472,136,883 54,503,482 96,325,043 11,119,763
(1,459,197,453)  (168,449,754) (451,300,152) (52,098,090) (91,397,156)  (10,550,888)

1,444,428 166,745 - )

10,673,888 1,232,194 302,859 34,962

850,000 (683,902,349) (78,949,687) 150,000 1,288,040,853 148,691,436 48,876 28,952,832 3,342,315

1,694,470,162 195,609,636 520,315,348 60,065,204 126,755,898 14,632,701
(1,133,305,426)  (130,828,778) (500,320,683) (57,757,020) (116,146,639)  (13,407,968)

12,785,179 1,475,921
6,737,652 777,795 3,837,895 443,047
850,000 (103,214,782) (11,915,114) 150,000 1,308,035,518 150,999,620 58,608 43,399,986 5,010,094
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2020 12 31
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2020 2019 12 31

143,858 28,576,118 3,298,827 (65,196,217) (7,526,251) 461,348,925 53,258,120
2,124,595,898 245,263,350
(2,001,894,761) (231,098,731)
1,444,428 166,745
14,992,574 1,730,743 14,992,574 1,730,743

(10,976,747) (1,267,156)
6,577,523 759,309 6,577,523 759,309
153,400 32,591,945 3,762,414 (58,618,694) (6,766,942) 607,064,587 70,079,536
2,341,541,408 270,307,540
(1,749,772,748) (201,993, 766)
12,785,179 1,475,921
15,827,024 1,827,072 15,827,024 1,827,072

(10,575,547) (1,220,841)
13,877,124 1,601,975 13,877,124 1,601,975
148,726 37,843,422 4,368,645 (44,741,570) (5.164,967) 1,241,322,574 143,298,278
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2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019
2,341,541,408 270,307,540 2,124,595,898 245,263,350
15,508,853 1,790,342 14,579,559 1,683,064
65,464,604 7,557,234 65,882,645 7,605,493
6,676,919 770,784 10,703,929 1,235,662
1,321,069 152,504 1,278,635 147,606
12,114 1,398 59,310 6,847
(44,308) (5,115) (99,913) (11,534)
14,256,907 1,645,817 28,852,954 3,330,785
15,010,423 1,732,803 14,132,707 1,631,480
(11,695,316) (1,350,107) (11,771,410) (1,358,892)
(146,673,050) (16,931,937) (133,320,387) (15,390,505)
(6,762,761) (780,693) (10,822,134) (1,249,307)
(130,819,174) (15,101,765) (168,718,254) (19,476,835)
(25,708,793) (2,967,823) (28,864,869) (3.332,160)
103,679,079 11,968,713 175,692,797 20,281,976
10,538,563 1,216,572 3,895,278 449,671
2,252,306, 537 260,006,267 2,086,076, 745 240,816,699
(51,884,452) (5,989,541)
6,500,203 750,383
(7,078,726) (817,168) (29,716,676) (3.430,493)
(13,730,247) (1,585,020) (640,695) (73,962)
(18,000) (2,078) (4,017,970) (463,834)
(14,326,770) (1,653,882) (86,259,793) (9,957,831)
416,000,000 48,023,040 2,239,000,000 258,470,160
(644,000, 000) (74,343,360)  (2,223,000,000)  (256,623,120)
(1,749,772,748) (201,993,766)  (2,001,894,761)  (231,098,731)
4,984,931 575,460 1,444,428 166,745
(30,720,464) (3,546,370) (28,608,691) (3,302,587)

(2,003,508,281) (231,284,996) _ (2,013,059,024) __ (232,387,534)

13,877,124 1,601,975 6,577,523 759,309
248,348,610 28,669,364 (6,664,549) (769,356)
422,556,446 48,779,916 429,220,995 49,549,272
670,905,056 77,449,280 422,556,446 48,779,916
1,300,045 150,077

233,931,730 27,005,079

(274,626,538) (31,702,888)

40,694,808 4,697,809
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2020 2019 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2020 12 31 58,608
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PI LLC
FINRA
2020 2019 12 31
0.00206 0.00190

2020 12
2020 12
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PEG

PIMCO

PGA

FINMA

AREOA

1ASB IFRS
IFRS
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2021 23

PIMCO

PIMCO
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IAS 17

16

2018
2019

2019

2019

2020

12 31
12 31

IFRS 16
IFRIC
2019 12 31
2020

2019

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

2019

274.6

347.1

2019 12 31

204/286
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IFRS 16

2.59

IFRS 16

IFRS

206,586,026

(96,826)
106,291,903
90,806

(38,245,371)

274,626,538

AAM LP

27

FDIC
FDIC
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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12

12

IFRS
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PIMCO

PIMCO PIMCO
30

2020 2019 12 31

IFRS

207/286



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

IAS 19

IFRS
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2020 2019 12 31 30.9 30.6
2020 2019
2020 2019 12 31
NAV
2020 2019 12 31
PIMCO 0.10 1.00
P1 LLC
P1 LLC 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 39.8 51.4

PIMCO
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Pl LLC 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 5.2
2.0
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2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2020

2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2020

PIMCO

2020
36.1

PIMCO
PIMCO
31
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50,681,246 83,658,168 1,021,436 135,360,850
18,961,101 12,515,207 31,476,308
(353,453) (353,453)
(19,443,474) (7,912,294) (27,355,768)
49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
2019 27.8 27.4
11,501,756 11,501,756
640,695 25,600,000 1,500,000 300,000 28,040,695
(5,180) (5,180)
(6,425,726) (2,080,000) (706,897) (200,000) (9,412,623)
5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 - 13,838,448
(5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000) (8,697,629)
13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
2019 8.7 9.4
AAM LP AAM LLC
2019 24.7
AAM LP AAM LLC
2020 2019
8.6 11.1
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LIBOR 0.2
90 AAM LP PIMCO 2020 2019
PIMCO AAM LP
PIMCO 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
228.0
PIMCO 2020 2019
373 3.7
2020 12 31 822.6
2019 724.1
2020 2019 52.4
45.8
PIMCO
2020 2019
7.8 8.6
PEG
PEG PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2020
PEG PEG 92.2
2019 40.3
PEG 2020 PEG
41.3 2019 33.3
2020 12 31
13.5 2019 9.8 PEG 28.8 2019 10.3
PEG
AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 LIBOR LIBOR 20
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2020 12 31 0.278
LIBOR LIBOR
AAM LP PIMCO
2020 2019 12 31
PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP EDCP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2020 2019 12 31 148,726
153,400 58,608
OPAD

2020 2019

213/286



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 2019
17,806 14,519
3.84 3.84
25.1 17.9
11.1 13.2
0.6 2.4
2020
2019
2018 12 31 143,858 143,858 13,606
39,751 39,751 14,519
23,492 (23,492)
(23,492) (23,492) 16,178
(6,717) (6,717) 12,618
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
2020 12 31
2020 12 31 11,319 17,806
2.52
17,806 2020
14,622 2019 2020 27,775
2020 30
9,732
2020 12 31 58,177
431 AAM LLC
2019 23,492 2019 29

3,171
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2020 2019
14.6
2020 12 31 2025 12 31
2020 2019
LTIP
2020
54.8 50.5
2020
116.3 111.1
100
2020 2019 55.1
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2020 2019 12 31
874.8 688.7

250,000
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2020 167 2019
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12 31
2020 2019
29,332 11,770
3,432,731 2,022,507
121,394,722 100,158,160
124,856,785 102,192,437
(20, 864,965) (3.371,142)
(20, 864,965) (3.371,142)
103,991,820 98,821,295
2020 2019 12 31 23.2 36.7
2020
2019 12 31 44.8 21.4 2020
2019 12 31 247 61
10
2020 12 31
29,593,350
6,304,014
240,983
376,312
2,179,123
2020 12 31 39.8

12 31
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15
66.8
2019 12 31
250

2019

2019

covibD 19
PIMCO CovID 19
CovID 19
1934
2020 12 31 Pl LLC
250 66.5
Pl LLC 57.5
57.2
2020
535.5
2020
582,606,016
222,021
AREOA AAM LLC AAM LP
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Note 2020 2019
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(d) $ 670,905,056 422,556,446
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(e), 3 30,870,470 30,623,395
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(f) 798,701,996 698,851,736
Private accounts 2(f) 314,822,326 282,546,439
Prepaid expenses 45,702,592 36,373,824
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(f) 23,912,871 25,219,844
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(k), 8(e) 19,755,282 19,239,181
Receivables from affiliates 7 17,306,918 13,010,339
Other current assets 64,128,683 60,915,714
Total current assets 1,986,106,194 1,589,336,918
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $213,677,355
and $183,689,431 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively 2(9), 5 121,111,682 139,127,937
Right-of-use assets 2(j), 10 195,322,419 209,441,754
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(k), 8(e) 855,055,452 669,472,591
Goodwill 2(i) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(h), 6 35,265,467 30,124,648
Investments in associates 2(b) 14,710,139 16,086,963
Other noncurrent assets 9 51,541,356 33,253,757
Total noncurrent assets 1,303,871,691 1,128,372,826
Total assets $ 3,289,977,885 2,717,709,744
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 398,802,753 409,454,573
Short-term borrowings from affiliates 7 - 228,000,000
Accrued compensation 8 216,289,372 208,752,447
Commissions payable 4 122,043,872 124,895,219
Lease liabilities 2(), 10 33,157,779 30,057,351
Payables to affiliates 7 37,379,146 21,460,619
Deferred compensation 2(s), 8(e) 19,755,282 19,239,181
Other current liabilities 4,928,294 11,190,145
Total current liabilities 832,356,498 1,053,049,535
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(s), 8(e) 855,055,452 669,472,591
Lease liabilities 2(j), 10 204,137,201 220,717,637
Other accrued compensation 8 152,799,181 164,382,884
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,306,979 3,022,510
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,216,298,813 1,057,595,622
Totd liabilities 2,048,655,311 2,110,645,157
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (103,214,782) (683,902,349)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,308,035,518 1,288,040,853
Class M members (58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020
and 48,876 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2019) 43,399,986 28,952,832
Class M unit option holders (148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020 and 153,400 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2019) 8(a) 37,843,422 32,591,945
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(p) (44,741,570) (58,618,694)
Tota capital 1,241,322,574 607,064,587
Totd liabilities and capital $ 3,289,977,885 2,717,709,744

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Revenues: Note 2020 2019
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(f) $  4,012,403,139 3,801,610,877
Private accounts 2(f) 1,095,151,513 1,011,008,189
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(f) 1,155,727,878 1,152,533,169
Distribution and servicing fees 2(f) 360,487,808 380,555,089
Other 2(f) 46,057,465 23,903,886
Total revenues 6,669,827,803 6,369,611,210
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 8 2,283,500,614 2,125,025,461
Commissions 4 777,771,809 857,070,964
General and administrative 2(t) 605,822,180 637,010,892
Professional fees 235,901,474 214,712,229
Occupancy and equipment 5,10 168,804,503 159,176,036
Marketing and promotional 2(0) 108,835,693 120,596,262
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 43,316,136 50,264,299
Other 44,512,301 27,702,379
Tota expenses 4,268,464,710 4,191,558,522
Operating income 2,401,363,093 2,178,052,688
Other income, net 52,168,123 57,347,069
Finance costs 2(j), 10 (6,676,919) (20,703,929)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,321,069) (1,278,635)
Net income before income taxes 2,445,533,228 2,223,417,193
Income tax expense 9 103,991,820 98,821,295
Net income 2,341,541,408 2,124,595,898

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(p) 13,877,124 6,577,523
Comprehensive income $ 2,355,418,532 2,131,173,421

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members Class M unit option holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31, 2018 850,000 $ (792,957,184) 150,000 $ 1,267,204,122 45,705 $ 23,722,086 143,858 $ 28,576,118 $  (65196,217) $ 461,348,925
Net income 1,556,133,972 472,136,883 96,325,043 - - 2,124,595,898
Distributions (1,459,197,453) (451,300,152) (91,397,156) - - (2,001,894,761)
Contribution 1,444,428 - - - - 1,444,428
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 14,992,574 - 14,992,574

Reallocation of basis on vested options 10,673,888 - 302,859 (10,976,747) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 6,577,523 6,577,523
Balances at December 31, 2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000 1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832 153,400 32,591,945 (58,618,694) 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 - - 2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) - - (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 - - - - 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 15,827,024 - 15,827,024

Reallocation of basis on vested options 6,737,652 - 3,837,895 (10,575,547) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 13,877,124 13,877,124
Baances at December 30, 2020 850,000 $ (103,214,782) 150,000 $ 1,308,035,518 58,608 ¢ 43,399,986 148,726 3 37,843,422 ¢ (44,741,570) $ 1,241,322,574

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,341,541,408 2,124,595,898
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 15,508,853 14,579,559
Depreciation and amortization 65,464,604 65,882,645
Finance costs 6,676,919 10,703,929
Equity inloss of associates 1,321,069 1,278,635
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 12,114 59,310
Unrealized and realized net gain on investments carried at fair value through
profit and loss (44,308) (99,913)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 14,256,907 28,852,954
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,010,423 14,132,707
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (11,695,316) (11,771,410)
Income taxes paid (146,673,050) (133,320,387)
Interest paid (6,762,761) (10,822,134)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Feesreceivable (130,819,174) (168,718,254)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (25,708,793) (28,864,869)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 103,679,079 175,692,797
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates 10,538,563 3,895,278
Net cash provided by operating activities 2.252.306,537 2086,076,745
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired - (51,884,452)
Cash acquired through acquisition 6,500,203 -
Purchases of property and equipment (7,078,726) (29,716,676)
Purchases of intangible assets (13,730,247) (640,695)
Purchases of investments in associates (18,000) (4,017,970)
Net cash used in investing activities (14,326,770) (86,259,793)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 416,000,000 2,239,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (644,000,000) (2,223,000,000)
Distributions paid (1,749,772,748) (2,001,894,761)
Contributions received 4,984,931 1,444,428
Principal elements of lease payments (30,720,464) (28,608,691)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,003,508,281) (2,013,059,024)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 13,877,124 6,577,523
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 248,348,610 (6,664,549)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 422,556,446 429,220,995
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 670,905,056 422,556,446
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 1,300,045 -
Initial recognition of right-of-use assets - 233,931,730
Initial recognition of lease liabilities - (274,626,538)
Derecognition of future lease obligation - 40,694,808

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2020, 58,608
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financia
statements.
PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dealer that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutual Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by

PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC is aregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00206% interest and 0.00190% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUSL P. as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branch in Italy until December 1, 2020, at which time the branch was sold to the Italian branch of PIMCO
Europe GmbH (PEG), formally PIMCO Deutschland GmbH.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

PIMCO Austraia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.
PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC isaholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.
PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.
Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor inthe U.S.

Allianz Real Estate of AmericaLLC (AREOA) is acaptive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financia statements.

(20 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 23, 2021.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and
key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(©) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

The Company adopted |FRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16), on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under IFRS 16, the Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a corresponding financial liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Company used the following practical expedients for all leases:

The need not to reassess whether expired or existing contracts are or contain leases; or reassess any initial
direct costs for existing leases.

Use hindsight in determining the lease term and in assessing impairment of the right-of-use assets.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at
the Company’s estimated incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied at the date of initial application was 2.59%. A liability of $274.6 million was initially
recognized for operating leases. The right-of-use asset was measured at an amount equal to the lease liability and
adjusted by the remaining balance of the future lease obligation. The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a
significant impact to the results of operations.

The operating lease commitments reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 can be reconciled to the lease liabilities
reported under IFRS 16 as follows:

Operating lease commitment as of December 31, 2018 $ 206,586,026
Recognition exemption for leases expiring
before December 31, 2019 (96,826)
Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised 106,291,903
Other 90,806
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
January 1, 2019 (38,245,371)
L ease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 274,626,538

(d) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $347.1 million and $179.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $2.3 million and
$27 thousand at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Management considers investments in money market
accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are
carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash
equivalents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each institution generally
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar federal foreign
programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance
coverage.

(e Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value

are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Transactions in these
investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

() Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually at the
end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and the fees
are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these val ues can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

(Continued)

230/286



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(i) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(K Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

() Income Taxes

The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share
of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(m) Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generaly distributes its operating income (as defined
within the PIMCO Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after
the end of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably
necessary or appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(n) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(0) Marketing and Promational

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(p) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been tranglated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are trandated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of trandating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income. The cumulative
trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

() Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evauation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(f)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(r) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(s Defared Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

(u) Reclassification
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
(3) Fair Vdue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $30.9 million and
$30.6 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2020 and 2019.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership, at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2020 or
2019.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(4) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed as incurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at arate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (primarily on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. Pl LLC incurred $39.8
million and $51.4 million in commissions to third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019, respectively, and isincluded in commissions in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an
applicable exemption applies such as if the redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested
dividends or capital gain distributions or appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. The
contingent deferred sales charges on Class C shares is generaly 1% if redeemed during the first year following
purchase for applicable PIMCO Mutual Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may also be received on the
redemption of certain Class A shares at a rate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares, if the initial
purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. Pl LLC received $5.2 million and $2.0 million in
contingent deferred sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively,
which isincluded in other revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(5) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Total
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018 $ 50,681,246 83,658,168 1,021,436 135,360,850
Additions 18,961,101 12,515,207 - 31,476,308
Disposals (353,453) - - (353,453)
Depreciation and amortization (19,443,474) (7,912,294) - (27,355,768)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
Additions 8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
Disposals (12,114) - - (12,114)
Depreciation and amortization (16,946,736) (10,841,783) - (27,788,519)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.8 million and $27.4 million during 2020
and 2019, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(6) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Customer Developed Trade
software relationships  technology name Total
Carrying amount as of
December31,2018 $ 11,501,756 - - - 11,501,756
Additions 640,695 25,600,000 1,500,000 300,000 28,040,695
Disposals (5,180) - - - (5,180)
Amortization (6,425,726) (2,080,000) (706,897) (200,000)  (9,412,623)
Carrying amount as of
December31,2019 5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
Additions 13,838,448 - - - 13,838,448
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
Carrying amount as of
December31,2020 $ 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 - 35,265,467

The Company recorded amortization expense of $8.7 million and $9.4 million during 2020 and 2019,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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December 31, 2020 and 2019

(7) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $24.7 million and $36.1 million
during 2020 and 2019, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
aliability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services and payables to other &ffiliates
in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on behalf of
PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $8.6 million and $11.1 million as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generaly
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2020
and 2019, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term loans, and at December 31,
2019 had outstanding short-term loans of $228.0 million, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates
in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2020 and 2019, PIMCO incurred
$373 thousand and $3.7 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which isincluded in other expenses in
the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had $822.6
million (2019: $724.1 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $52.4 million and $45.8 million during 2020 and 2019, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.8 million and $8.6 million during
2020 and 2019, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2020, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services alocated to PEG was $92.2 million (2019: $40.3 million)
greater than the revenue allocated from PEG and is presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees - pooled
funds in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for
performing other shared services are alocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors.
During 2020, costs alocated to PEG were $41.3 million (2019: $33.3 million) and are included as a reduction of
compensation and benefits and general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had a $13.5 million (2019: $9.8 million)
receivable from PEG and a $28.8 million (2019: $10.3 million) payable to PEG, which are included within
receivables from affiliates and payables to ffiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financia condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.278% as of December 31, 2020) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2020 and 2019.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 8. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the magjority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuas
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 8
(e), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the EDCP). If,
at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option
award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to
receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit
Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.
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A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and no further M units shall be
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, 148,726 and 153,400 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding, and 58,608 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options.

Thefair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed to M unit
holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers
using the Merton Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one
third in years 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.

The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806 14,519
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1% 17.9%
Expected dividends 11.1% 13.2%
Risk free rate of return 0.6% 2.4%

A summary of the activity in 2020 and 2019 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Total fair value
Outstanding at
December 31, 2018 - 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606
Changes during the year:
Granted - 39,751 39,751 14,519
Vested 23,492 (23,492) - -
Exercised (23,492 - (23,492) 16,178
Forfeited - (6,717) (6,717) 12,618
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted - 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) - -
Exercised (27,775) - (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited - (6,701) (6,701) 14,416
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2020 - - - % -
(Continued)
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The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2020 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 2.52 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $17,806 for 2020 and $14,622
for 2019. M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised
under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732
M units. No other M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2020, 58,177 M units are owned
by current and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 23,492 vested during 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 3,171 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2020 and 2019 was $15.5 million and $14.6 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2020, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $24.5 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation recorded under these programs was $1.4 billion
and $1.3 billion during 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(©) Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
compensation expense under the LTIP of $54.8 million and $50.5 million during 2020 and 2019, respectively.
LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability was $116.3 million and $111.1
million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included within current accrued compensation and
noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(d) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LPisthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Interna Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2020 and 2019 was $55.1 million and $48.4 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(e) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company and subsidiaries may be deferred at the election
of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a
select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3),
and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred under the
plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by the
employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2020 and 2019 was $874.8 million and $688.7 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.

() Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz SE
determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines the
discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and totaled $2.0 million in 2020 and $167 thousand million in 2019, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(9) Income Tax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Y ear ended December 31

2020 2019
Current:

Federa $ 29,332 11,770
State 3,432,731 2,022,507
Foreign 121,394,722 100,158,160
Tota current 124,856,785 102,192,437

Deferred:
Foreign (20,864,965) (3,371,142)
Total deferred (20,864,965) (3,371,142)
Total provision $ 103,991,820 98,821,295

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, income taxes payable amounted to $23.2 million and $36.7 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2020 and 2019, deferred tax assets amounted to
$44.8 million and $21.4 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
amounted to $247 thousand and $61 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying

consolidated statements of financial condition.

(10) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs during the year ended December 31, 2020 that are included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of |eases of low value assets

$ 29,593,350
6,304,014

240,983

376,312

2,179,123

For the year ended December 31, 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $39.8 million.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities:

Year ending December 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

(11) Financia Risk Management

$ 38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267
(24,146,287)

$ 237,294,980

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk

Market Risk

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(8 Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an alowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financia
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2020.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;

this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 7.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions also occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Y en.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2020, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2020 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 13) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(12) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

(Continued)
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December 31, 2020 and 2019

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and global markets. During periods of high
volatility and uncertainty experienced by markets in 2020, PIMCO Funds and private accounts experienced net
asset outflows and negative returns relating to the disruption caused by COVID-19, but it did not result in a
material adverse impact to the Company during the year. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practical to
determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(13) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. As of December 31, 2020, Pl LLC had net capital of
$66.8 million for regulatory purposes, which was $66.5 million in excess of its required net capital of $250
thousand. As of December 31, 2019, Pl LLC had net capital of $57.5 million for regulatory purposes, which was
$57.2 million in excess of its required net capital of $250 thousand.

(14) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $731.2
thousand and $535.5 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during 2020 and 2019,
respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds in the accompanying statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:

December 31
2020 2019
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 582,606,016 $ 493,340,219
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds 222,021 170,996

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(Continued)
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(15) Acquisition

On October 1, 2020, AREOA was contributed to the Company from Allianz of America, Inc., an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, through AAM LLC and AAM LP. Asthe contribution qualified as a transaction
between entities under common control, AREOA was contributed at a net book value of $7.8 million, which is
included in contributions in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in capital.

(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financia condition
through April 23, 2021, the date the consolidated financia statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following event to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 40,974 vested on January 15, 2021. On March 31, 2021, these vested awards
were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 15,582 M units.
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2021 30

1,218,980,021 140,719,054
24,143,992 2,787,182
640,599,756 73,950,836
323,112,265 37,300,080
45,041,939 5,199,641
21,334,131 2,462,812
23,002,042 2,655,356
26,850,035 3,099,568
63,200,555 7,295,872
2,386,264,736 275,470,401
226,717,390 114,004,405 13,160,669
189,975,621 21,930,786
974,184,449 112,459,853
30,865,176 3,563,076
33,187,129 3,831,122
39,183,015 4,523,287
55,254,579 6,378,589
1,436,654,374 165,847,381
3,822,919,110 441,317,782
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395,823,404 45,693,854
602,171,423 69,514,669

97,046,294 11,203,024

31,084,922 3,588,443

63,658,292 7,348,713

23,002,042 2,655,356

5,815,416 671,332

1,218,601,793 140,675,391

974,184,449 112,459,853

200,119,987 23,101,851

155,480,580 17,948,678

4,060,949 468,796

1,333,845,965 153,979,178

2,552,447,758 294,654,569

850,000 (85,381,560) (9,856,447)
150,000 1,313,915,921 151,678,454
74,190 62,594,657 7,225,927
103,555 26,537,533 3,063,493
(47,195,199) (5,448,214)

1,270,471,352 146,663,213

3,822,919,110 441,317,782
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2021 30

2,077,603, 355 239,838,531
605,560,698 69,905,927
611,553,473 70,597,733
174,139,153 20,102,624

18,174,820 2,098,101

3,487,031,499 402,542,916

1,256,149, 699 145,009,921
389,891,600 45,009,086
312,358,275 36,058,639
109,509,733 12,641,804

84,905,818 9,801,528
52,028,090 6,006,123
23,765,858 2,743,531
20,100,930 2,320,451
2,248,710,003 259,591,083
1,238,321,496 142,951,833
98,732,681 11,397,701
(2,910,107) (335,943)
995,294 114,897
1,335,139, 364 154,128,488
46,340,393 5,349,535
1,288,798,971 148,778,953
(2,453,629) (283,247)
1,286,345,342 148,495,706
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2021 30
850,000 (103,214,782) (11,915,114) 150,000 1,308,035,518 150,999, 620 58,608 43,399,986 5,010,094
910,405,280 105,097,186 290,446,808 33,529,180 87,946,883 10,152,588
(909,072,477)  (104,943,327) (284,566, 405) (32,850, 346) (77,649,354)  (8,963,841)
8,451,432 975,633
8,048,987 929,175 8,897,142 1,027,086
850,000 (85,381,560) (9,856,447) 150,000 1,313,915,921 151,678,454 74,190 62,594,657 7,225,927
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2021 30

148,726 37,843,422 4,368,645 (44,741,570) (5,164,967) 1,241,322,574 143,298,278
1,288,798,971 148,778,953
(1,271,288,236) (146,757,514)
8,451,432 975,633
5,640,240 651,109 5,640,240 651,109

(16,946,129) (1,956,261)
(2,453,629) (283,247) (2.453,629) (283,247)
103,555 26,537,533 3,063,493 (47,195,199) (5.448,214) 1,270,471,352 146,663,213
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2021 30

1,288,798,971

148,778,953

5,527,181 638,058
32,361,814 3,735,848
2,910,107 335,943
(995,294) (114,897)
(327,452) (37,801)
2,103,482 242,826
15,036,589 1,735,824
(7,960,091) (918,913)
(54,843,368) (6,331,118)
(2,910,107) (335,943)
152,391,041 17,592,022
(11,554,500) (1,333,851)
413,326,409 47,714,401
26,920,238 3,107,672

1,860,785,020

214,809,023

(6,180,581) (713,486)
(1,488,667) (171,852)
(23,500,150) (2,712,857)
(31,169,398) (3,598,195)
337,000,000 38,903,280

(337,000,000)

(1,271,288,236)
8,451,432

(16,250,224)

(38,903, 280)
(146,757,514)
975,633
(1,875,926)

(1,279,087,028)

(147,657,807)

(2,453,629) (283,247)
548,074,965 63,269,774
670,905,056 77,449,280

1,218,980,021

140,719,054
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PIMCO Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2022 807,608,901.74 932 3,037
1971
1940 PIMCO
PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2022 25 2,886

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2022 10 4,000 1,200 5,760

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

2022 1,209 13 9,567

1989
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BMA
BMA

2006

IF
31

1,040.00
1,040.00
1,870.00
1,250.00
1,870.00
1,325.00
1,860.00
1,170.00
1,170.00
1,870.00
1,250.00
1,870.00
1,325.00

2019

BMA

2019
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the
financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights are
hereafter collectively referred to as"financia statements'.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) @) PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M) Y

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
©)

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund ¢

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund
@

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @)

e

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @)

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond

Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A &)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO World High Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

31, 2021

@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended October

(@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the period from
October 30, 2020 (inception date) to October 31, 2021
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@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2021, and the
financia highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financia highlights for the period from October
15, 2020 (inception date) to October 31, 2021
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financia position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of October 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the
changes in each of their net assets and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 25, 2022
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changesin

capital, and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financia position of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

285/286



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it

accounts for leasesin 2019. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

April 23, 2021

286/286



	表紙
	本文
	第一部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	（１）ファンドの目的及び基本的性格
	（２）ファンドの沿革
	（３）ファンドの仕組み
	（４）ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	（５）開示制度の概要
	（６）監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）運用体制
	（４）分配方針
	（５）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）管理報酬等
	（４）その他の手数料等
	（５）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	（１）投資状況
	（２）投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他の投資資産の主要なもの

	（３）運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	（４）販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３乗換え
	４資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）信託期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	５受益者の権利等
	（１）受益者の権利等
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書
	（３）投資有価証券明細表等

	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第二部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	２関係業務の内容
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４参考情報
	第５その他

	監査報告書

